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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE CELEBRATION
W0 L 52 4

THE 30TH LISTING ANNIVERSARY — STRIDING AHEAD

2017 marked the 30th anniversary of the listing of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries the
“Group”) which went public on June 30, 1987 and also the 80th birthday of its founder, Mr. Tse Sui Luen. To celebrate these two special events, a cocktail
reception and gala dinner was held by the Group at the Intercontinental Hong Kong Hotel on March 19, 2017 — over 500 VIPs were invited including
leaders of various associations in Hong Kong and the Group’s business partners. Renowned singers from the city, such as Mr. Alan Tam, Mr. Albert Au, Ms.
Maria Cordero and famous radio programme host Mr. Sammy Leung were featured as performers. A jewellery fashion show formed part of the night’s
entertainment which traced the Groups long history incorporating scenes from the Group’s past classic TV commercials which starred Aaron Kwok, Chow

Yun Fat, Ekin Cheng and Wakin Chau. The event was enjoyed by all and was not only successful in showcasing the achievements of the Group in the past

but also in outlining the direction of the Group in the future.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE CELEBRATION (CONTINUED)
Wi 2 50 Bh e

“TSL | #t%s8 is a long-established brand that has grown alongside Hong Kong — it is proud of being one of the first Hong Kong-based jewellery brands
to expand into the international market and therefore paving the way for others to follow. As the founder of the Group with the nickname “Headmaster in
Jewellery Craftsmanship”, Mr. Tse has devoted himself to the jewellery industry for nearly 70 years. Having experienced various challenges along the way
and having witnessed many changes over the years, 80-year-old Mr. Tse has become an industry model to look up to and a living legend in Hong Kong.

Mr. Tse has passed on the torch, together with his “undefeatable” fighting spirit and values, allowing the Group’s businesses to flourish further.

Mrs. Annie Yau Tse, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, expressed, “2017 is the Group’s 30th anniversary of listing which represents a new
milestone. The concerted effort of every staff member and selfless contribution of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, together with his unrelenting fighting spirit, have
made the achievements of the Group today a reality. Going forward, we will continue to improve ourselves and hope to pass down the ‘Hong Kong spirit’

of Mr. Tse Sui Luen.”
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FINANCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS
F %5 W 2

DIVIDEND PER SHARE (HK$) TURNOVER (HK$'M)

BRERE (BT EEEOEKBEL)

. 0.0525 . 2.411

s 0.0410 s 3,539

5 0.0490 s 3,871

1 0.0920 4 4,057

i3 (0.0800 3 3,563

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
THE COMPANY PER SHARE (HK$) OF THE COMPANY (HK$'M)
RARHEE NEGREEFEE (BT RRFHENELEBF(BEBEET)
17 4. 63 17 2

6 4.90 6 24

5 5.20 5 40

u  5.09 w75

3 4.70 5 68
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(restated)
(E51)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (HK$’'M)
FEZAWER(B¥EER)
Turnover SR 3,411 3,539 3,871 4,057 3,563
Profit before tax BRI AT &R 52 46 63 101 95
Profit for the year RNEERBF| 23 24 40 74 68
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A T1# B AFE(L & F] 23 24 40 75 68
PER SHARE (HK$)
RERE BT
Earnings A F| 0.1 om 0.19 0.35 0.32
Dividend fi% 2 0.0525 0.041 0.049 0.092 0.080
Dividend payout ratio KRB =R 48% 37% 26% 26% 25%
Net assets attributable to owners RRRHEE NENE
of the Company FEE 4.63 4.90 520 5.09 4.70
Market price g 2.50 2.00 2.74 2.99 420
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$’M)
REMBRREBR (BEEER)
No. of shares (‘M Shares) fethx 2 (B &%) 210 210 210 210 210
Shareholders’ funds RERE S 974 1,031 1,095 1,071 989
Borrowings BE 1,023 1,060 924 857 631
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEED 324 203 130 141 206
Net gearing ratio FRELE 55% 59% 58% 67% 43%

Market capitalization I 526 421 576 629 883
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Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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LETTER

TO SHAREHOLDERS
IR S 19 16 1

While the financial year under review (“the Year”) has been a challenging one for
the Group, it has also been one that has encouraged us to work harder and to make
changes that we believe will be of benefit to the Group both now and into the
future. Despite the inevitable decline in the Group’s year-on-year turnover and
profit attributable to shareholders due to the stagnant retail environment in Hong
Kong, | am pleased to report that other key financial performance indicators such as
cash level, inventory turnover days and net gearing ratio have continued to improve
at a steady pace. While the retail market in Hong Kong did not show any signs of
recovery during the Year and the pressure of high rental cost was still significant
despite fall in rental levels in 2016 and 2017, the retail market in Mainland China
remained relatively stable with some growth. However, we did see some shift of
buying power from higher ticket items to lower ones. Despite these unfavorable
conditions, we have kept expanding our business by opening new shops in all
operating regions, especially through franchising and building new online business
platforms in Mainland China. Even in the city of Hong Kong, we have been taking
the opportunity from the downward trend in rentals to redeploy our resources by
continuously adjusting the store network in order to enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of our use of capital. Overall speaking, the Group is taking a prudent and
yet opportunistic approach for the sustainability and betterment of its business
development.

During the Year, | was especially excited about the unveiling of the International
Design Collection platform which featured Christine Keller’s art jewellery as its first
launch collection. Christine Keller is an art jeweller originating from West Virginia,
USA and her collection showcased her authentic designs and approach to
craftsmanship. We collaborated with Christine by creating a unique art jewellery
collection made of 24-karat gold and other colourful materials. This unique
collection not only injected international art elements into our 24-karat gold
product assortment but also made it colourful and playful which a lot of customers
enjoyed wearing matching the colours of their daily clothes. As an added benefit,
customers were offered to join Christine Keller workshops from which they were
able to get hands-on experience in making some simple art jewellery pieces. The
program has proven successful with desirable sales performance and very positive
feedback from customers. By riding on this International Design Collection platform,
we will continue to explore interesting collaborations with designers from different
parts of the world in order to continue to bring international lifestyles and
perspectives to our customers.

BARPREE ((AEE D) HAREETN S E LSBT -
BIRSBEMBSHTBAE IKE  RIEEHELTYE
AEBMBRRGERNERT R LS - REENEATE
TRBESTR - SAEBIRFEXBRESABER
FERTR - R AARARASTRERS - HhES
MRS EEKT FERAERHRFAEBLE
BRFERTHRE - HEHEETEM B MR LB EME
PR MEE 2016 F & 2017 FHAE LK FH AT TR -
BREESCHNEBEANAEKR - B2 T PEAMBTE
THAREBELYEMER  BRMAEEINEE HRR
BESANREESMHOEE - BERYTFIEE - &M
MEBEFEANMERFARNE - EEUEFLER
N ARBIHOB LT ETEIRRER - RATEES
REASTANBETHAREHEE  EFARE
B RaERESNERRRE - BIFMs - A£EIE
FELEEM IR S MERE - BENSEBEE -

RARERE » A A ¥ H International Design Collection “F
& + WA Christine Keller I FELRE AL BRI FEL AE
E ° Christine Keller @ — 7R B XRFAHZ E B MHFE
Him AT A - MAER ERTHERAIBOBRANIE -
P98 Christine Keller & 1E#EH — 1 | 24k & R b B F
BHOHNMBMEKNNBREFERERY LB &K
R TERBBEEM T AR MO 24k ERBAEF -
BEHEEZYREBER -t REBEREETFH
I RFIH AR E B ERAAEE - S0 BEINA
ZEEIMBER - JEBZ M0 Christine Keller TYEYT © B E 8
BUEMENFIEMiR -  BENEBERERIEEIENR
£ E AL 5T 8 E 4 5T o F 919 i 1B International
Design Collection F & + #ERR E R Z AR TR
TEFNRBEMNEE  AERBETRERENETER
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
O S B A e

On the corporate side, this year is the 30th anniversary of TSL listing on The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange as well as the 80th Birthday of our Founder Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse”).
We took this opportunity of double happiness to host a remarkable celebration dinner in
Hong Kong in March 2017, where we remembered the footprints of Mr. Tse in establishing
our business, and more importantly, to highlight Mr. Tse’s and the Company’s status as the
“Headmaster” in the jewellery craftsmanship history of Hong Kong. Mr. Tse was a pioneer
in developing the jewellery manufacturing industry and discipline during 1960s when the
economy of Hong Kong was undergoing a transformation. As an interesting metaphor, we
invited Mr. Alan Tam, the renowned singer and super star who is named as “the
Headmaster of the Hong Kong Pop Music Industry”, to be our guest of honor. Mr. Tam had
not only demonstrated his talents by live singing but also conducted an enjoyable chit-
chat with Mr. Tse, where the two “Headmasters” praised each other’s achievements.
Through this event, our major business partners together with other guests from the
jewellery and other retail industries of Hong Kong and overseas were impressed by the
TSL family heritage and its persistence in facing challenges, which is one of the
representative stories of the Hong Kong spirit. In fact, this celebration dinner was much
more than just a one-off party, which enabled TSL to embark on its long journey of
building the TSL Brand Heritage.

FELEBEAE  SFEATSLES BB EMI0EF -
AR B A ERB A ([ EE D 80BR - R LE
ERMANKS  E207FIADREBRRT —HER
e B RIMEEHACEAENRT  FEEME
TSR AEANTERTBRE LB FHEEMA -
R1960 FRE BB EE R AR - SEETRESK
EREFRTHREENER BMERBTZER2RFR
EE ABIEERTELRE] MERBEE  EAR
RS - BLAETEERRSEBRAHESE B
B A RS - MG [RE] FIREMAE  BEE
IHE BB © 5 IE B - TSL A9 5 e {8 AR fe HL B2 5% T 4 Bk
BB RRITB BRI E 2R EE MR E 5%
EREMTEENER  METeET —ERREAER
BHRE - EAREER ITERE—WNRYE  £%
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Being a responsible corporate citizen is an essential part of good corporate management
nowadays. During the Year, besides our continuing support of UNICEF, we started to
explore ways to preserve the creative industries that have given Hong Kong, the home of
the TSL Group, a competitive edge both past and present. Through monetary support to
or collaborations with The TSL| & ¥ Foundation, a charitable trust for sustaining the
development of creative industries of Hong Kong, we have set our eyes on the
preservation of jewellery craftsmanship and Cantopop music as well as the revival of
astronomy and astrophotography among Hong Kong amateurs. Our mission is to help
maintain Hong Kong as a gateway to Mainland China and to global views of areas that we
are passionate about. Further details of our activities in relation to corporate social
responsibility will be disclosed in a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report
pursuant to the regulatory requirements.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to all
shareholders, board members, our conscientious staff members, loyal customers, business
partners and other stakeholders for their continuing support and commitment to the
Group. TSL is a company committed to its vision, mission and core values. As a visionary
and passionate leader, | look forward to scaling new heights and achieving new milestones
to ultimately create greater values for our shareholders, stakeholders and the community.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 May 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLE 2 5 S o7

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

For the Year, the consolidated sales turnover of the Group declined by 3.6% to
HK$3,411 million from HK$3,539 million last year. The profit attributable to owners
of the Company slightly decreased by 1.9% to HK$23.2 million from HK$23.6 million
last year. This resulting little drop is solely attributable to a one-off gain arising from
the Company’s early redemption of the convertible bonds. Earnings per share for
the Year was 11.0 HK cents.

A continuing reduction in tourists visiting Hong Kong from Mainland China together
with the ongoing instability of both the global and local economic and political
environment conspired to create an unfavourable consumption sentiment for the
Group’s retail outlets during the Year. As a result, the Group experienced a year-on-
year drop in retail sales activity in Hong Kong which in turn resulted in the overall
decline in sales and profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year. In
addition, certain factors, such as the devaluation of the Renminbi and the slowing
economic performance in Mainland China under the impact of the new government
in the United States, were all inimical to tourist arrivals, consumer confidence and
consumer purchasing power. Despite the challenging atmosphere, we are
encouraged by the growth of our business in Mainland China, particularly our
franchise business and e-business, which helped to partially offset the decline in
sales activity in Hong Kong.

Notwithstanding the above adverse business conditions, we were able to limit the
drop in our overall consolidated gross margin to just 0.7% from 45.5% to 44.8%
during the Year due to our corporate policy on consistent monitoring of gross
margins. Having gone through the last two years of market adjustment, rentals in
Hong Kong and Macau have shown signs of decline though they have not entirely
responded to the reality of the prevailing economic and retail conditions in those
markets. We continue to review our tenancies as they expire and are striving to
achieve a more reasonable market rental rate and a mix of shop locations by our
store-to-store approach so as to make our retail businesses more sustainable going
forward.

Being an innovative leader in the jewellery retail market, we conceived and
launched the International Design Collection during the Year working with a leading
American art jewellery designer Christine Keller to introduce the making of
personalized fine jewellery by our customers in DIY workshops offered in several of
our stores as the first chapter of collaboration with various jewellery designers
around the world. The Group will keep on identifying various gifted talents in the
industry with the aim of bringing more crossover collections and refreshing ideas in
order to meet changing customers’ needs.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Retailing Business
Hong Kong and Macau

A drop in the number of tourists visiting Hong Kong and Macau from Mainland China
during the Year and the continuation of the austerity measures undertaken by the
Mainland government in the last few years both led to an overall decrease in tourist and
customers spending in Hong Kong. During the Year, the sales turnover of Hong Kong and
Macau decreased by 24.6% overall and same store sales growth was minus 23.0%. On the
positive side, due to this challenging market situation we have observed and experienced
a fall in rental levels in both 2016 and 2017 which, strategically, we have seized upon to
open two new stores (one in Whampoa Garden and the other in Times Square, Causeway
Bay) during the Year. We will keep reviewing, adjusting and expanding our store portfolio
in a cautiously opportunistic manner so as to better serve our customers. The total number
of self-operated outlets in Hong Kong and Macau were 28 and 3 stores respectively at the
end of the Year.

In addition to our store-to-store strategy, we will strengthen our product assortment to
enhance the brand’s affinity among consumers and differentiate ourselves from peers. The
Group will continue to reinforce its market positioning by bringing more unique retail
experience to the local markets in Hong Kong and Macau.

Mainland China

Similar to last financial year, our retail business in Mainland China continued to be the
Group’s growth engine achieving a pleasing performance during the Year with an overall
growth of 4.7% and same store sales growth of 2.2%. This business accounted for 43.6% of
the Group’s turnover. Our focus on the development and expansion of the end-user
market and our quality design and craftsmanship has proved correct and is reflected in the
results for the Year. The Group will regularly review its store network and increase the
store opening pace to better reach and serve our customers, particularly in the second and
third tier cities, where we identify a potential demand of our jewellery products. The total
number of self-operated outlets was 198 at the end of the Year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B 25 N o BT (s

The growth of our franchised store business in Mainland China has been encouraging.
During the Year, a net total of 49 new stores were opened under the Group’s franchising
model representing an increase of franchised stores from 83 to 132 which, when coupled
with our 198 self-operated stores, meant the Group had 330 stores in total in Mainland
China extending our footprint to 112 cities. With our focus on further penetrating into the
Mainland China market, new stores were opened in the second and third tier cities across
various provinces, among others, Anhui, Hainan, Heilongjiang, Henan, Hubei, Hunan,
Liaoning, Shangdong and Shanxi Provinces to reinforce our market presence. Expertise,
professional training and ongoing scrutiny by the Group’s management will ensure that
our franchisees maintain a consistent and high quality standard in their stores.

Malaysia

Our retail business in Malaysia recorded a drop in sales of 10% during the Year, which was
mainly due to an average devaluation of the Malaysian Ringgit of 5.2% during that time. As
the Group remains positive about the jewellery retail business in this region, we opened
one more retail outlet during the Year making a total of 4 stores by the end of the Year.
We continue to explore the possibility of expanding further in appropriate locations but
only if and when suitable opportunities present themselves.

Wholesale Business

As previously mentioned, a net 49 new franchise stores were opened via the Group’s
franchising network during the Year bringing the total number of franchised stores to 132
as at 28 February 2017. The Group will continue to explore more opportunities to work
with local business partners to facilitate a more robust growth of the Group’s franchised
store sales network. With this satisfactory pace of expansion, the Group is looking forward
to increasing its franchise sales network in response to the market conditions in Mainland
China.

Other Business

The Group further extended its e-business platform and its performance was encouraging,
reflected in a growth of 281% during the Year. The Group’s three major e-business
platforms achieved a very positive result on Singles’ Day (that is, 11 November 2016) as
sales surged by over 600% as compared with that in 2015. In addition to the existing
platforms, namely, VIP.com, T-Mall and JD.com, the Group has further extended into
Amazon.cn, Taobao and Jumei.com during the Year, and will continue to explore more
suitable channels to complement its existing combination and the Group’s brand.
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Outlook

Notwithstanding the better economic performance in Mainland China as compared with
that in Hong Kong, we will stay prudent in formulating our business strategies there
particularly in light of the unrevealing impact deriving from the indecisive policies by the
new government of the United States. To enable ourselves to combat such challenging
environments, we have continued with implementing more cost control measures. Growth
of other operating overheads including staff costs will also be critically reviewed and
monitored. Our policy in respect of inventory will follow the said rationale that inventory
portfolio will only be carefully expanded with replenishment being well controlled to
reduce the inventory turnover days.

In addition to stringent monitoring of the costs and expenses, the Group will take the
initiative to introduce creative elements in our retail outlets to attract a larger stream of
customers. The latest is the launch of International Design Collection in which we have and
will continue to set up some free-of-charge workshops for the customers where they can
enjoy designing and producing their own unique jewellery products. Not only will this
concept bring a refreshing change to our conventional jewellery products, its associated
marketing campaign will also attract attention in the market. Should opportunities arise,
the Group will work with other talents in the future to create more novel ideas in respect
to its jewellery products.

The Group believes that the growing middle class in Mainland China still provides a solid
base for market expansion going forward and that the unfavourable market environment
currently being experienced in Hong Kong is cyclical and transient. Despite careful cost
control being applied by the Group at the moment, it will continue to invest in and
enhance its brand, inventory, store network and human resources to ensure that it can
continue to deliver higher returns to our customers and shareholders in the future.

Driven by its fast expansion during the Year, the Group believes that the franchising model
in Mainland China will be the growth engine of the Group’s turnover, brand development
and profitability. The Group will keep identifying appropriate franchisees for expanding
our retail network commensurate with the Group’s business needs, targeting to reach a
portfolio with a ratio of 7:3 for franchised stores to self-operated stores.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B 25 N o BT (s

FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and expansion, furniture &
fixtures and machinery, incurred during the Year amounted to approximately HK$63
million (2016: HK$59 million), which was mainly financed by borrowings and funds
generated from internal resources.

As at 28 February 2017, the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities decreased to HK$1,023
million from HK$1,060 million as at 29 February 2016. Net borrowings (total interest-
bearing liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits) decreased from
HK$604 million to HK$532 million.

Internally generated funding and borrowings have mainly been applied during the
Year to finance the enhancement of the Group’s inventory, the opening of new stores
and capital expenditure.

The net gearing ratio (the ratio of total interest-bearing liabilities (less cash, cash
equivalents and time deposits) to total equity) decreased from 59% to 55% during the
Year and is at a healthy level. All borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars or RMB. Interest on bank borrowings is calculated on either the inter-
bank interest rate or the prime rate or the benchmark interest rate.

As at 28 February 2017, the Group had time deposits, cash and bank balances, and
undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately HK$490 million and HK$112 million
respectively which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, should be sufficient
to meet the Group’s present working capital requirements.

Early Redemption of Convertible Bonds

On 29 November 2016, the Company and CDH King Limited (the “Subscriber”) entered
into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company redeemed all of the Company’s convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”)
early on 29 November 2016 (the “Early Redemption Date”) in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$250,000,000 together with all interest accrued and outstanding up to
the Early Redemption Date and a redemption premium (the “Redemption Amount”).
Details of the said early redemption can be found in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with the terms of the Settlement Agreement, all obligations of the
Company under the Convertible Bonds were deemed to have been fulfilled, satisfied
and discharged in full upon payment of the Redemption Amount. After completion of
the said early redemption, there is no outstanding Convertible Bond in issue.
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Exchange Rates

During the year, the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in local
currencies and United States dollars. The impact of any fluctuation of the exchange
rate of these currencies to the Group is minimal.

Charge on Group Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group did
not have any material contingent liabilities which have not been provided for in the
financial statements as at 28 February 2017 (2016: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2017, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 3,280 (2016: 3,420). The change was mainly due to normal staff
turnover, minor headcount adjustment of sales team in Hong Kong and delayed
recruitment in light of the uncertain business environment. There were no major
changes in human resource policies.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates.
Other employee benefits include medical cover and subsidies for job-related
continuing education. Retail frontline staff are provided with formal on-the-job
training by internal senior staff and external professional trainers. There are
discussions and in-house seminars for experience sharing.
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THE FOUNDER
HIEPN

15K

SUI LUEN

ol i Bk

Tse Sui Luen, aged 80, the Group’s Founder. Mr. Tse provides general advisory &
strategic advice to the Group. He was the Chairman of the Group from 1987 to 2000
and re-joined the Group in September 2011. He is a veteran jewellery expert having
over 50 years of experience in jewellery industry. He has a wide range of experience
in gem setting, quality control, administration, operations, management and
marketing. He also has very good personal networks with the peers and suppliers,
which facilitate the Group’s business development. Mr. Tse is a member of the
Political Consultative Committee of Huadu District, Guangzhou in the People’s
Republic of China. He is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and the controlling shareholder of the Group, and the father-in-law
of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
T2 R AT BURE
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Yau On Yee, Annie, aged 46, is the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the
chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She joined the Group
in 2002, and became an Executive Director of the Company in 2006. She is also a
director of all subsidiaries of the Company. In the early years at the Company, she
pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP discipline and modernised the Company’s
management through business process re-engineering. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked for multi-national companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and IBM.
She has over 24 years of management experience in the USA and Hong Kong. She is
a director of each of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which
have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. She graduated from Boston University, USA and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the controlling
shareholder of the Group, and the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder
of the Group.

Ms. Yau is a member of each of Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee and
Hong Kong Retail Management Association Executive Committee. She is also an
elected member of Quality Tourism Services Association Governing Council (Retailer
Category).
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DIRECTORS PROFILE (CONTINUED)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ng Yi Kum, Estella, aged 59, is an Executive Director, the Deputy Chairman, the Chief
Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. She joined
the Group in 2015 and is responsible for Group Finance and other administrative functions
as well as defining corporate strategies of the Group. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

From January 2008 to April 2014, Ms. Ng was the Chief Financial Officer of Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2007), a company whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). From
September 2005 to November 2007, she was an executive director of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) (Stock Code: 101), a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Prior to her joining in Hang Lung in 2003, she was employed by the
Stock Exchange in a number of senior positions, most recently as Senior Vice President of
the Listing Division. Prior to that, she gained valuable auditing experience with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. Ms. Ng is a qualified accountant and holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is
an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has also
contributed her time to various public service appointments, including being a co-opted
member of the audit committee of the Hospital Authority until November 2013.

Ms. Ng is an independent non-executive director of China Power New Energy
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 735) and Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 882), both companies whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of DS Healthcare Group, Inc., a company the
shares of which are listed on the Nasdag Capital Market in the United States and it was
delisted on 23 December 2016. She served as an independent non-executive director of
China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed
by way of American Depositary Shares on the Nasdaqg Global Market in the United States,
until 10 August 2015. Ms. Ng also served as an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) until 31 July 2015, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Erwin Steve Huang, aged 51, is a Non-executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of
the Company. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the period from 24
April 2008 to 28 February 2010. Prior to joining the Group in March 2005, he was a
seasoned entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing, education, telecom and
information technology. Mr. Huang has built and developed multiple companies in London,
San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past years. He holds double degrees in
Science in Business Administration and Business Administration and Management from
Boston University, USA.

Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (stock code: 3882), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang is actively engaged in social entrepreneurship with a view to bridging social
needs through innovation and information technology. He is currently Associate Professor
of Engineering Practice of the Department of Electronic & Computer Engineering, and
Adjunct Professor of the Department of Information Systems, Business Statistics and
Operations Management, Senior Advisor (Entrepreneurship) of The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is currently the President of Hong Kong Information
Technology Federation, one of the largest and most respected information communication
technology associations in Hong Kong; the Deputy Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong
Kong, dedicated to inspiring and preparing young leaders to succeed in the global
economy through entrepreneurship; the Evangelist of WebOrganic, a social enterprise
under The Hong Kong Council of Social Service designed to help deprived students
participate in digital computing developments and e-learning. Mr. Huang is one of the
Founding Members and currently serves as Vice-Chairman of the Senior Citizen Home
Safety Association, a UN award winning non-governmental organization in Asia, which
provides personal emergency link services for the elderly through the use of technology,
people-oriented services, and innovative methods. Mr. Huang also chairs the elL.earning
Consortium, which has been instrumental in driving Hong Kong’s e-learning initiatives in
education reform. In 2011 and 2016, he was elected as an Election Committee Member
(Information Technology) for the Legislative Council and Chief Executive of HKSAR.

028 | 029

FHTES

EEK  BESIK  ARFERITESREITRE - BR
200854 24 £ 201042 A28 A HIM HE AR £ B 17
BR#E, - 200553 AMAREE 25 HEEFHD
¥R BIREEHRE  #HE - BAREEREMEHER -
BAEBELINEVEESHNAT  BEGH - =
EW RRARES  HEENERRITEAZ  BAT
BEE BETHRAERBEELTEEN -

BERERREERAR DA (BMORIE : 3882) ZIFHTT
B RARZBMHRERM LT

BEALRBSEGECE  BRABBHELEARHIN
BERER 2B - RARBTEMBRKRBEE T RET
HRTREBRATRERABENRER  BEAR REE
ERBREREHR R RER (BIX) - RATEESDE
RAARRHESNASBENRAGZ—W[EEE
AREEE ] 2EF - RS [BERKEEEEE]
ZEER  ZEFEBOINEBRBEIIIRMENEE
FEEMNDIHEBEPIMEE - BIA[EELER
Big | BT ML erX[EREE] ZRFA - B
ENSL RSB EREREIMEM BB - &X
ERTRELZEME MGG ERRERTIRE LR —
EEMEERTAES SRR SREAN
B MABKRSE KA A RRERE T RER -
BERAENTREFREBHBE| 2XF REBETHELA
BB BB NE - K201 R 20165 - HHEREBE
MITREREGRITHREEZESZEGKE (A
B e



DIRECTORS PROFILE (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, who joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. Chui is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is an independent non-
executive director of each of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8228), PPS International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8201) and Wing
Lee Property Investments Limited (Stock Code: 864), all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He served as an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (Stock Code:8148) and a non-executive director of
Addchance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344) , both companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange, until 2 March 2016 and until 23 May 2017 respectively.
He served as the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol and a member
of the Road Safety Campaign Committee of the Road Safety Council, until 30
November 2016. He is also a director of a number of private companies and
associations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, who joined the Group
in 2010.

Mr. Chan was the former chairman and is currently a non-executive director of Café de
Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341) and is a non-executive director of Tao Heung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and an independent non-executive director of
each of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1382), Starlite Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 403), Modern Dental Group Limited (Stock Code: 3600) and Human
Health Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1419), all shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He served as an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange, until 31 July 2015. Mr. Chan has worked as a professional town
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planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds a double major
degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business
Administration, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He has been a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China, until February 2017. Mr. Chan has
many years of professional experience in the public sector and over 30 years of
management experience in the food and catering industry. Mr. Chan has been a
Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and a member of the
Task Force on Promotion of Vocational Education until 2015. He has also served as the
General Committee Member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong until 31 March
2016. He is the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business
Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association. In the
public sector, Mr. Chan is appointed by the Government of the HKSAR as member of
the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chow Chee Wali, Christopher, aged 50, is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company, who joined the
Group in 2013.

Mr. Chow is the Founding Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and private equity fund
management company. He holds a Diploma of Investment and Finance from The
Securities Institute of Australia, a Bachelor of Economics degree from The University
of Sydney and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and merger and
acquisition advisory. Prior to founding TCC Capital, he worked for two of the “Big
Four” international accounting firms in Sydney, Hong Kong and Beijing and was the
Partner in charge of the mergers and acquisitions practice. He possesses in-depth
understanding of financial and capital markets and has built up substantial experience
in advising multinational companies, state owned enterprises and private companies
in Hong Kong and Mainland China on a number of direct investments, and mergers
and acquisitions transactions.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, aged 49, is the Group’s Deputy Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for the Group’s sales and operations in all markets plus the Group’s creative
directions and supply chain management. Mr. Tse joined the Group after returning from
the USA in 1994. He was the Chairman of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and was, during
that time, responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and business development. During
his absence, his life had been enriched through touching the hearts and souls of the
inmates. He re-joined the Group in September 2011. Mr. Tse graduated from Boston
University and holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration) degree, Bachelor of
Science (Mathematics) degree, and Master of Arts (Mathematics) degree. He is a director
of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which have discloseable
interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is
the son of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and is the controlling
shareholder of the Group.
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ATHEME SONG

Composed by renowned musician from Hong Kong, Mr. Johnny Yim, and written by Ms. Nana Kan, a theme song was created to express
the admiration for Mr. Tse Sui Luen and to congratulate the Company’s 30th anniversary of listing. Mr. Alan Tam, a Hong Kong super star
with the nickname “the Headmaster of the Hong Kong Pop Music Industry”, was invited to record the song, spreading the story of TSL and

passing on the spirit of Hong Kong.
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The 18" Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition E+N\EEEHERTHE HKIM Market Leadership & B BB ZE 2 Market
Merit Award of Open Group NFEERE Award 2016 Leadership Award 2016
Section: Ring 4RI AE Market Leadership in Market Leadership in
Title of Design: Capriccio e TE : BaA8 M Jewellery & Watch Jewellery & Watch
SERVICE AWARDS OTHER AWARD

iy - Hih 218

HKRMA Mystery Shopper Program (Jan — Mar 2016) 2016 33X T8 (206 E—AZF=4) Legacy Award 2016 BE K 2016

2016 Service Retailers of the Year — Gold Award 2016 FRAERBZEAE — ¢ Female Leader Legacy Award %2 & F{EF K £
2016 Service & Courtesy Award 2016 £ H RIS 88

Service Category Leader — Gold Award ERIRIEER — 25

Junior Frontline Level — Individual Award Winner BALEIEEE — EERR

Total Service Assurance Regime 2HELRBTE
Quality Service Scheme Top Award 2016 EERER RIS KE2016
Tiptop Service Award Open 2015-16 2015-16 K= IRFE AHE
Champion and First Runner-up SR

Retail Award tail Awart




ANNUAL REPORT AWARDS
FHEER

International ARC Awards 2016

Bronze - Printing & Production: Retail: Jewellery
Honours - Cover Photo/Design: Retail: Jewellery
Honours - Interior Design: Retail: Jewellery

Galaxy Awards 2016:
Bronze - Design: Corporate Publications - Company/Employee
Bronze - Design: Retail

LACP 2015 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
Bronze - Print-Based Annual Reports: Consumer - Durables
Regional Top 80 Rank: 64 (Asia-Pacific Region)

Country - Based Honours: Top 50 Chinese Reports

The International Annual Report Design Awards

Silver - Print / Non-traditional Format - Luxury Product - Integrated Presentation
Bronze - Luxury Product - Design Concept/Cover Design

Bronze - Luxury Product - Design Execution/Interior Design

Bronze - Luxury Product - Design Execution/Photography

Mercury Awards 2016:
Bronze - Cover Design: People/Products

Astrid Awards 2016:
Bronze - Photography: Annual Report - Interior
Honours - Photography: People/Products
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REPORT OF

THE DIRECTORS
o g

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) have pleasure in
presenting their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 28
February 2017 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to
180 of this annual report.

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 3.75 HK cents (2016: 2.6 HK
cents) per ordinary share of the Company, amounting to a total final dividend of
approximately HK$7,888,000 (2016: HK$5,469,000) for the Year. Together with the
interim dividend of 1.5 HK cents (2016: 1.5 HK cents) per ordinary share of the
Company paid on Wednesday, 23 November 2016, will amount t o a total dividend
of 5.25 HK cents (2016: 4.1 HK cents) per ordinary share of the Company for the
Year.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “2017 AGM”) to be held on Wednesday, 19 July 2017, will be
payable on Friday, 1 September 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 27 July 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the sections
headed “Letter to Shareholders” and “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” of this
annual report. No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end
of the Year. Certain financial key performance indicators can be found in the section
headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders and discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in the seperate
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” and in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company for the Year.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(@)  from Friday, 14 July 2017 to Wednesday, 19 July 2017 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2017
AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong Time) on Thursday, 13 July 2017; and

(b)  from Wednesday, 26 July 2017 to Thursday, 27 July 2017 (both days inclusive), for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend. In order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited at the address as
set out in sub-paragraph (a) above no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on
Tuesday, 25 July 2017.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) and (b) above, no transfer of shares
will be registered.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PRE-EMPTIVE
RIGHTS

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or issued share capital
during the Year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

Details of other equity-linked agreements, are included in “Share Option Scheme” and
“Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights” below.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to HK$673,000 (2016:
HK$207,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) and the
Company’s Bye-laws, amounted to approximately HK$641,497,000, which represented
the contributed surplus and retained profits of the Company, of which HK$7,888,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the Year.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) and the Company’s Bye-laws, the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed surplus if:
(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

In addition, the share premium with balance of approximately HK$123,365,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Details of the above are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover for the Year. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest supplier of
the Group accounted for approximately 72% and 23.6% respectively by value of the
Group’s total purchases.

Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a fellow
subsidiary of Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, which is a preference shareholder of
Partner Logistics Limited (the Company’s immediate holding company).

Except for the above, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers and
suppliers noted above.

¥ - BERRE

AEENYE  BELRENAFEREZBOFIEHR
FINER B BTSRRI E14

A D IkfE

R2017F2 A28  ARRIRERREI981F A alEK
X (&HERT) RA AR R MR E 2 Al 2R EL A
P55 641,497,000 T BIREKAR BN ERRBRRER
F| - E AR 7,888,000 TR AANFEE 2 AR E -

REBAFZFIBIFRRNEERT) RAR AW AR
ARREHRABKRATOIK » A - WERATER - &
RATNFREZBAREIFEEE RSN A
D ERBERES - DEBNRER - TREXBEHEE
HEMEE k() EBEENAZREBERMINEEE
REBBITRARBMD G E 2B -

SN - AT MR SR AT B 25 UK B B A0 0a 1R BO 45 BR M0 7B B
123,365,000 7T

LA EFF BRI AR & B TS R ML 40
TERFRHUED

AEERAFERARFEHEAEBRZEEEERER
30% MAEBARNEEEIREAEEED AIEAER
{ASEBE R 72% 2. 23.6% ©

ARE B R A ER 2 — A Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited
A Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited (It 3R A Rl 2 B
B 1A% A T Partner Logistics Limited HI8 st B AR5 ) 9 [E
RHBAR]

B EaES  MEARRNES  fEEABHEALSR
ERERR(BESEHRA  HEARADHEITRAS% A L)
BAZEIEZP RMEREA#R -



DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ng Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Chan Lambert Lap Yip (Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial)
(resigned on 1 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman)
Wang Guosheng (resigned on 1 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and to comply with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), Messrs.
Erwin Steve Huang and Chui Chi Yun, Robert will retire as Directors at the 2017 AGM.
Messrs. Erwin Steve Huang and Chui Chi Yun, Robert, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election as a non-executive Director and an independent non-executive Director for
a term of three years respectively. All other Directors continue in office for the ensuing
year.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the
current independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has a service contract with the

Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 28 February 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and on the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”), were
as follows:

(i) Interests and long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
SREEBY 0.25 THEZ B

Approximate

percentage

Derivative of total

interest issued share

(share options) capital*

Personal Family Corporate PTETE Other HE#T

Name of Director interest interest interest e interest IRASHE

EEHE BAER RikfEs AT ERE (BBRFE) HithiE s BABE D

Yau On Yee, Annie 100,000 152,960,917 = 1,210,000 = 73.92%
P2 5% (Note fffzF 1) (Notesfffz#2 & 3)
4,000 1,210,000
(Note i1z 1) (Notesff#£2 & 3)

* The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue of the < BAL2RN201742 A28 B 2 %17 210,336,221

Company as at 28 February 2017.
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Notes:

152,960,917 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a
company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

4,000 ordinary shares of the Company were bought by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy on the
Stock Exchange. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

1,210,000 share options of the Company were granted to each of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie
and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy on 1 March 2013. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie is deemed to be interested in all the share options of the Company granted to Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

Duplication occurred in respect of the same blocks of share options as separately set out
under section (i) “Interests and long position in underlying shares of the Company”.

Bt -
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(i)

Interests and long position in underlying shares of the Company
The Directors during the Year who had interests in option to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company are set out as follows:

Number of share options

BRENEE

Outstanding

as at

1March
2016 Granted
20165 during
3A1H the Year

Date of
Grant

(dd/mm/yyyy)
R B
(B/B/%)

Cancelled
during
the Year
FERFH

Exercised
during
the Year
ERfTE

Name of Director

E3nR

(i)

Lapsed
during
the Year
FREH

RAXFEHEARONERR TR
EERAFEHRTE A RBEAR R T BN
MBI T

Outstanding
as at

28 February
2017
20176
2A28H
fheh

Vesting/

Exercise Period

(dd/mm/yyyy)

Exercise HEH/
price

THEER

THsE
(B/R/%)

Yau On Yee, Annie 01/03/2013 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000 HK$4.13 15%: 01/09/2014~

B E (Note i) 29/02/2020

15%: 01/03/2015-

29/02/2020

30%: 01/03/2016-

29/02/2020

40%: 01/03/2017-

29/02/2020

Chan Lambert Lap Yip ~ditto@ £~ 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 - -ditto[A E- -ditto[A] k-
v

Note: HisE -

The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March 2013 was
HK$4.13, being the date on which the relevant share options were offered for grant.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2017, none of the Directors, chief
executive and their respective associates of the Company, had any other interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
required notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any
such Director or chief executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section 352
of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange.

AREIRBR2013F3A18 (A G BEERES ZHRT
&) TEB 3 e 2 W (B B # 413 T »

B EXERIEESN  R20179F2 288  WEA
RANESE  FRTBRABRESZHBEALTH
EREBS LS EHIEXVEET R H EBAL
E AR F MR AT 2 AR A A Sk AT AR B AE (E
HERBELEDAEEREXVE) D - ARG K&
BB ESIAR (BEREES RS IEHAE
BEXTRNESERRBTRABMEGSNERA
BERNERIAR)  SREESRPEENE
IEARARRRIFEE 2 &S SRE LT
BARFE 2 IZETAIBME AR R KB FT 2

RS TOAR ©



044 | 045

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND FERREHMATRAQRARHG REBRMH
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE BENESEXE

COMPANY

As at 28 February 2017, the interests, all being long positions, of any substantial R2017F2A288  EREZERESRE M AL (WIEA
shareholders or other persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) in ARINERHERITIRAB)EARA ARG & SA8K
the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the DHEEERBEELFRAEKROIEXVEE2RI DI
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have BEMARRMELER  RERBEESFRBAEGHE

been recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 B IEBALARR BT ECMANERZ (B AITR)
of the SFO were as follows:

W

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
FREEBE 025 TWEBER

Approximate

0]

@i

i)

(@iv)

(V)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

Partner Logistics Limited (Note #15E 1)
Blink Technology Limited (Note 7% 1)

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note A& 1)
Szl

Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited (Note 17t 2)
Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited (Note 7% 2)
Prime Investments S.A. (Note ff3t 2)

Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. (Note #f7E 2)

Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (Note #if7# 2)

Viraj Russell Mehta (Note ftzE 2)

percentage
of total
Number of issued share
ordinary capital*
Number of shares e 31T
Capacity share options AR A A2
54 BRI E BHEE MOEILL*
Beneficial owner - 152,960,917 72.72%
EnEAA
Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
SRR A
Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
SR NG 2
Interest of Spouse 1,210,000 100,000 0.62%
IR fB A
Beneficial owner 1,210,000 4,000 0.58%
EmfEB A
Interest of controlled corporation = 152,960,917 72.72%
ek | VNG 253
Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
e NG
Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
SR NG 2
Interest of controlled corporation = 152,960,917 72.72%
SR NG 2
Trustee - 152,960,917 72.72%
BFREA
Settlor of discretionary trust - 152,960,917 72.72%
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Notes:

The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as
at 28 February 2017.

152,960,917 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company
which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an
executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her
deemed interest is disclosed under the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”) and Mr. Tse
Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

100,000 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie resulting from the
exercise of share options of the Company on 10 July 2009. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company held by Ms. Yau On
Yee, Annie.

1,210,000 share options of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the share options of the Company
held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

Another 1,210,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and
4,000 ordinary shares of the Company were bought by him in the Stock Exchange.

These ordinary shares of the Company, relating to the same block of shares mentioned in note 1
above, are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink
Technology Limited. Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited is the preference shareholder of
Partner Logistics Limited. Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Rosy Blue
Jewellery (HK) Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Prime Investment S.A.. Prime
Investment S.A. is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., which in turn is wholly
owned by Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited. Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta is the settlor and a beneficiary of
a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), which in turns holds the interest in Rosy Blue Investments
S.a.R.L. through Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited, as trustee of the Trust. By virtue of the SFO, each of
Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited, Prime Investments S.A.,
Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited and Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta, is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Due to the Company’s early redemption of the Convertible Bonds on 29 November 2016, by
virtue of the SFO, each of CDH King Limited, CDH Fund IV, L.P., CDH IV Holdings Company
Limited, China Diamond Holdings IV, L.P. and China Diamond Holdings Company Limited ceased
to be interested in shares of the Company. Further details are set out in the section headed
“Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights” in this report of Directors.

B 5 2R 2017 4 2 A28 A B %17 210,336,221 % I 3
AT

152,960,917 A% & 38 iR 4 Partner Logistics Limited#F 4 * &%
RBAHFZEBSEE (RRTEFBLELLZHE) 2 E
E 258 .2 Blink Technology Limited 8 R #l - 1R1FZE
£ R HIE 154 - Blink Technology Limited ~ ESZ#EZ 1 (1
BRI ERN Z B m 2 FIEHR [EERESTHAR
RARBZ R ~ 1R R EZ I #Ew kAR | 565
A1) J% 741 % I 5F A # 42 fE # B HH Partner Logistics Limited
HEZATERGZ #as ©

100,000 A% & BR (R 2009 4 7 A 10 A 7T 1&FE AR A i 2= £ )
AL ELZ LA o RIFES R EIRG) - HE I 5E &£
WARIEFFH S L EX T FH 2T E R (D #am °

1210000 R 17 2 R IEA R E X 15 - RIZEFEFK
HEEG - FFEBEERB R AR ZELTHEZ
FTERBRIES s o

541,210,000 AR 17,2 AR HE £ o EE U 5 415 5 J% 55 4,000
REARA R BB ATEE -

UL AR 5B _E kKT a1 AT 2 R B9 F Partner Logistics
Limited#F & Z 16 [f] B& 17+ 3% 23 A B Blink Technology
Limited # 78 K 1% %1 > Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited
A Partner Logistics Limited #) & & A& A& Z ° Prime
Investments S.A.i% 8 Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited &
& # A Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited ° ] Asiya
Trust Co. Pte. Limited Rl % B % & # % Rosy Blue
Investments S.a.R.L. 1 £ & # A Prime Investments S.A. °

Viraj Russell Mehta 5t 4 T3 B 1§ (5 7E ([ 15 7T 1) 2 I ER T
ARZ2EA  iFEiAAsiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (1552 15
LA ) 2 BB Rosy Blue Investments Sa.R.L. ° 1RIZK &
K BFE(F1] - Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited ~ Rosy
Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited * Prime Investments S.A. »

Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. ~ Asiya Trust Co. Pte.
Limited % Viraj Russell Mehta 3t 4£ ¥ #4225 & i Partner
Logistics Limited 8.2 BT B R 17,2 #Ez °

ERARAR2016F11 /29 HIg RAE L] AT R &5 « 1R
1% 7% % R B B 1§ B - CDH King Limited ~ CDH Fund 1V,
L.P. ~ CDH IV Holdings Company Limited * China Diamond
Holdings IV, L.P. % China Diamond Holdings Company
Limited BEAE R AR L\ AIAIR (5 HE B HE 2 o HE— A IB 8IS
RABEFEEHREZ [AIHERES - BIRESIALEF ] —

o



Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2017, the Company had not been notified of
any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of
the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on the Directors
are as follows:

Mr. Erwin Steve Huang, a non-executive Director, has been (a) appointed as a Senior
Advisor (Entrepreneurship) of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with
effect from April 2016; (b) appointed as (i) an Associate Professor of Engineering Practice
of the Department of Electronic & Computer Engineering and (ii) an Adjunct Professor of
the Department of Information Systems, Business Statistics and Operations Management,
of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with effect from January 2017
respectively; (c) elected as an Election Committee Member (Information Technology) for
the Legislative Council and Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2016; (d) re-designated from the founding Chief Executive Officer to Evangelist
of WebOrganic with effect from September 2016; and (e) resigned as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company with effect from 19 September 2016.

Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director, has been appointed as a member of Hong

Kong Retail Management Association Executive Committee with effect from October 2016.

She ceased to be a member of 2016 Theme Year Working Party of The Hong Kong
Management Association with effect from 1 January 2017.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, an independent non-executive Director, has retired as a
commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol and a member of the Road Safety
Campaign Committee of the Road Safety Council with effect from 30 November 2016
respectively. He has also retired as a non-executive director of Addchance Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3344) with effect from 23 May 2017.

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella, an executive Director, currently as an independent director of DS
Healthcare Group Inc., a company the shares of which were delisted from the Nasdaq
Capital Market in the United States with effect from 23 December 2016

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, has resigned as a
member of Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the People’s
Republic of China with effect from end of February 2017.

Changes in Directors’ emoluments during the Year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 26 November 2003 (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”). The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
2003 Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity™).

2. Participants of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(b)  any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

) any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

BB ESE

A.

2003 F IR REFTE

AR 2003F 11 A 26 B B 4REE R AERT 2] (2003
FREMAERTE]) - 2003 FEEMAERT I E B 5K
LI -

1. 2003 FHER =T BIHY B Y
2003 B AERT B B R T Rk 28
BEFFBETH2EEEANEENERMR
R/ RREAREBABEREBRESE
8 URAAEERAEEFERENE
BHRERBDBMNBEEAT

2. 2003 FEEIRIE BINBEAN -

@ ARAE - EEANE AR R
RAERNEMRES (The2Rk
KBRS BREARTESED
BREERIFATES)

() ARRE - EEFNE R R R
BRABRNEMENTES (R1FHE
SIEHITES)

© AEEEMKERRREFKRERE
EROEMNE YRR HER

() FEBESEAHRREERNEME
=K

(&) MAEENMEMEKEERIRMHHG
T~ FIE SR S R Sk E A R Y
ERMALTHERE : &

H  ANREKEARRE BB TR
RFEFKE AR - FAEEER
BB A RIS EMEERE BB A ER
ERTEFRAA °



Total number of shares available for issue under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and the percentage of issued share capital as at the date of this
report:

As at 23 May 2017, the total number of ordinary shares currently available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme is 6,100,000, representing 2.9%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme:

The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the Company.

The period within which shares must be taken up under an option:
The Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period
shall not be more than ten (10) years from the date of grant of the Option.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the
option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the
subscription right attaching thereon.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments must be made:

An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board and such
price shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the offer date; (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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9. The remaining life of the 2003 Share Option Scheme: 9. 2003 FERIE B A B UE -
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013. 2003 F B ETZIE R 2013F 1 A 25 AE
Subsequent to the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no further o BEE 2003 F B AEAT B 2 fEwm - 5T
option can be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the provisions of AR UL B T AR  HE2003 BB AR g AT &
the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and all options granted ZIERDAEORAREBRAIFAETZ
prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance BE IR (RS B U AT IR I T LATT {6 o
therewith.
The movements in the number of share options under the 2003 Share Option RAFEE R - BIE 2003 FHEIRET 2 MR HA
Scheme during the Year were as follows: BREZHBERIINTE -
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at Vesting/
Date of grant 1March Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 28 February Exercise period
(dd/mm/yyyy) 2016 during during during during 2017 Exercise (dd/mm/yyyy)
Name or category of BIRE  R2016F  theYear  theYear  theYear  theYear R2017F Price HESH/
participant R A 3A1H rEE rEE rEE AEE  2828H B 7EH
SEATERIRES (B/B/%&) wer Rl Grd i R BB (Note izt (B/B/%)
Substantial shareholder
FERR
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy 01/03/2013 1,210,000 - - - - 1210000  HK$B# 413 15%: 01/09/2014~
Eiedd 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015-
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016-
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017-
29/02/2020
Sub-total 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000
N
Associate of Director/
substantial shareholder
EERFERENHEA
Tse Sui Luen (Notefif7£ 2) 01/03/2013 800,000 - = = - 800,000  HK$B# 413 15%: 01/09/2014-
Bl 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015-
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016-
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017-
29/02/2020
Sub-total 800,000 = = = = 800,000
et
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Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at Vesting/
Date of grant 1March Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 28 February Exercise period
(dd/mm/yyyy) 2016 during during during during 2017 Exercise (dd/mm/yyyy)
Name or category of BERE R2016F  theYear  theYear  theYear  theYear M2017% Price BB/
participant R B 3818 rEE KEE REE AEE  2H28H 18 T
SHEATERIRES (B/B/%) wes Rl 6 a8 ¥ BB (Note ffit1) (B/B/%)
Employees
&8
In aggregate 01/03/2013 6,390,000 = = - (3100,000) 3290000 HK$EE 413 15%: 01/09/2014-
(B3h) 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015-
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016-
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017-
29/02/2020
Sub-total 6,390,000 - - - (3100,000) 3,290,000
Nt
Service providers
PR A5 (it rERs
In aggregate 01/03/2013 800,000 - - - - 800,000  HK$E# 413 15%: 01/09/2014-
(B&h) 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015-
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016-
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017-
29/02/2020
Sub-total 800,000 - - - - 800,000
Nt
Total 9,200,000 - - - (3100,000) 6,100,000

Lo
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Notes:

A The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March
2013 was HK$4.13, being the date on which the relevant options were offered for grant.

2. Mr. Tse Sui Luen is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, a substantial shareholder of
the Company and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director.
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse Sui Luen is an associate of Mr. Tse
Tat Fung, Tommy and Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie respectively.

3. Details of share options granted to Directors and chief executive of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positons
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company” in this report of Directors.

Details of share options granted to the Directors and the relevant movements
during the year ended 28 February 2017 are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company” in this report of Directors.

The 2016 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general meeting
held on 21 July 2016 (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). Terms of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme are substantially the same as the 2003 Share Option Scheme. As at
the date of the report, no options have been granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme. The following is a summary of the principal terms of the 2016 Share Option
Scheme:

1. Purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity.
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Participants of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

(@

()

©

@

(e)

®

(@

h)

any employee(s) (whether full time or part time employee(s),
including any director or executive director but not any non-executive
director) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed or
may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business and/or financial arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme and the percentage of issued share capital as at the date of this
report:

Pursuant to the term of 2016 Share Option Scheme, the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue on 21 July 2016 (the “Adoption Date”) (i.e. not exceeding 21,033,622
shares on the basis that the total issued share capital of the Company as at
the Adoption Date is 210,336,221 shares). Options lapsed in accordance with
the term of 2016 Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
However, the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
2016 Share Option Scheme any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
option granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

The period within which shares must be taken up under an option:

The period would be commencing from the date of grant of an option and
ending on such date as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the
option has to be held or other restrictions before the exercise of the
subscription right attaching thereto.
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7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments must be made:
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any offer may be accepted
in respect of less than the number of shares for which it is offered provided
that it is accepted in a board lot for dealing in the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. An offer is open for
acceptance within 28 days from the date of offer provided that no offer shall
be open for acceptance after the expiry of the 2016 Share Option Scheme or
after the 2016 Share Option Scheme has been terminated.

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:
The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board and such
price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
offer date, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the offer date; (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

9. The remaining life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:
The 2016 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years,
which will expire on 21 July 2026.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

054 | 055

7. A EREREAMTZHE RE6H
BB ZHR
EEAEZERZHREMSRESK100T -
ERAEEEMDORAE T ZRHOK
B BZBROBEERFABEIMAITRS
ZEEBMNREERBHE ARATRE
HBBR -+ N8 BERNERNEL - 1
& 2016 F BB AR HE 5T &1 K sk 2016 4F B Ak 4
FFEIMAR IEES - BT AEERE M o

8  {TREWETEZE:
EESEERRENITEE  mERE
MITEBAROBOREREZOR TR
HEBIAESHIKRTE  MZAARR
S8 (WBROREBEEREZORTAS
AR ERZ 5 B R 2 Preg S ) P9 8
R (i) iR O REE=%E A ) R 87 -

9. 2016 FER T B HEr B U -
2016 FREMRIEET BIR10F A - TR
20267 A21BJ&E °

BERORESZ 2ZH

B Db [REARRERT &) | — SR S - MAFEAAEME
8 ARE - BB AR RE M E R R B &R S E
APk - Bl E FHE YA R B S E A A B A
DB M



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
TS (8

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

With effect from 1 September 2011, (i) Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”), the
substantial shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms.
Annie Yau”), the executive Director, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company
as the Chief Merchandising Officer (subsequently, re-designated as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 November 2016) (“Tommy Tse Employment”); and (ii) Mr. Tse
Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie
Yau, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder (“Tse Senior
Employment”). Both Tommy Tse Employment and Tse Senior Employment constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Both
Tommy Tse Employment and Tse Senior Employment have been revised on 22 June 2012.
Further details are disclosed in the announcements dated 22 June 2012.

During the Year, the amounts in respect of Tse Senior Employment is below de minimis
threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, Tse Senior Employment is
fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.

With effect from 1 November 2016, the roles and functions of the senior management of
the Group have changed due to the continued development of the Group, Mr. Tommy Tse
has taken up the role in supply chain and wholesale business, as well as the leadership of
China retail, travel trade, alternate channels and the Group’s branding and creative
directions.

In alignment with the abovementioned change of the roles and functions of Mr. Tommy
Tse, the Company through its subsidiary, entered into an employment agreement with Mr.
Tommy Tse on 31 October 2016 (“Tommy Tse Employment Agreement”), which
superseding his previous employment agreement, with an increase in salary and
performance bonus entitled under the discretionary management bonus scheme of the
Group. As such, the Board has revised the annual cap on the total amount (inclusive of
bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy Tse under the Tommy Tse Employment
Agreement for the financial year ended 28 February 2017 and for the year ending 28
February 2018 of HK$4,500,000.00 on even date.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, the applicable ratios for the aggregate
annual package of Mr. Tommy Tse is less than 25% and the total consideration is less than
HK$10,000,000.00, the Tommy Tse Employment Agreement and the annual cap are only
subject to the disclosure in annual report, announcement and annual review by
independent non-executive directors and auditor requirement, but are exempt from the
requirement of circular and independent shareholders’ approval.
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According to Tommy Tse Employment Agreement, Mr. Tommy Tse’s basic salary amounts
to an approximately annualised aggregate of HK$2,400,000.00 per annum. There is also
the prospect of his being awarded a bonus under the discretionary management bonus
scheme (at the discretion of the Company’s Remuneration Committee). To cater for the
possibility of such a bonus being awarded, the Board has revised an annual cap on the
total amount (inclusive of bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy Tse under the Tommy
Tse Employment Agreement for the Year and for the year ending 28 February 2018 of
HK$4,500,000.00. The aggregate annual cap amounts represent the estimated maximum
possible aggregate annual remuneration payable by a subsidiary of the Company to Mr.
Tommy Tse with reference to (i) Mr. Tommy Tse’s agreed fixed remuneration; (ii) the
maximum bonus payable to Mr. Tommy Tse under the discretionary management bonus
scheme; and (iii) the expected contribution of Mr. Tommy Tse to matters relating to supply
chain and wholesale business, as well as the leadership of China retail, travel trade,
alternate channels and the Group’s branding and creative directions, and on the basis that
the basic monthly salary and maximum bonus would increase by 5% per annum.

The amount of above transactions did not exceed the corresponding annual cap for the
period 1 November 2016 to 28 February 2017 as announced by the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the employment and confirmed
that the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Company;
(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and
(c)  inaccordance with the relevant agreement governing such employment on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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Ernst & Young (“EY”), the Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audlits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. EY have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above and disclosed in note 36 of the consolidated financial statements,
there was no connected transactions or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest or interest in competing business, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year and up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the Year,
which do not constitute connected or continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed as at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses or damages which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage, which is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year, for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

On 29 November 2016, the Company have entered into the Settlement Agreement with
the holder of the Convertible Bonds in principal amount of HK$250 million issued on 20
April 2012, pursuant to which the Company had early redeemed all of the outstanding
Convertible Bonds on the Early Redemption Date with the Redemption Amount.

In accordance with the terms of the Settlement Agreement, all obligations of the Company
under the Convertible Bonds were deemed to have been fulfilled, satisfied and discharged
in full upon payment of the Redemption Amount. After the said early redemption, no
Convertible Bond is outstanding.

Save as the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme and 2016 Share Option
Scheme as disclosed above and the Convertible Bonds as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements, the Company had no other outstanding convertible securities,
options or similar rights as at 28 February 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Save as the early redemption of the Convertible Bonds mentioned above, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 28 February 2017 are set
out in notes 24 to 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 181 of this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 182 to 183 of this
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Human Resources
Department and the employees’ emoluments are determined on the basis of their
qualifications, experiences and area of expertises.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and senior management of the Company are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual expertises, professional experience and comparable market statistics.

The emoluments of the non-executive Directors, which including independent non-
executive Directors, were decided by the Board as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities.

The emoluments of the Directors and employees of the Group include a share option
scheme, details of which are disclosed in section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this
report of the directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float as required under the Listing Rules.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A.

Acting as guarantor for the facilities agreement with O-Bank Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Industrial Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.)

On 13 September 2016, the Company as guarantor and certain subsidiaries of the
Company as borrowers (the “Borrowers”) entered into a facilities agreement (the
“Facilities Agreement”) with O-Bank Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Industrial Bank of
Taiwan Co,, Ltd.) acting as mandated lead arranger, facility agent, original lender
and security agent, pursuant to which term loan facilities in the aggregate amount
of HK$573,000,000 (the “Facilities”™), inclusive of an exercised greenshoe option
upsize of HK$23,000,000, has been granted to the Borrowers for a term of 5 years
from the date of the first utilisation of the Facilities.

Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, among other things, it will be an event of
default if (@) Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (being
the controlling shareholder of the Company) ceases to (i) be the Chairman of the
Board, (ii) have control of the Company (which includes the right to determine the
composition of a majority of the Board); or (b) Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and her
immediate family members, together, ceases to (i) be, directly or indirectly, the
single largest shareholder of the Company, or (ii) have the ability to cast, or control
the casting of 60% or more of the maximum number of votes that may be cast at
any general meeting of the Company.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default which is continuing, the agent
under the Facilities Agreement may, and shall if so directed by the majority of the
lenders, cancel the Commitments (as defined in the Facilities Agreement) or any
part thereof, and/or declare all or part of the loans outstanding under the Facilities

together with accrued interest and other amounts be immediately due and payable,

and/or declare all or part of the loans outstanding under the Facilities be payable
on demand, and/or exercise any or all of its rights, remedies, powers or discretions
under the Finance Documents (as defined in the Facilities Agreement), as the case
may be.
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B. Acting as guarantor for the subscription agreement with two institutional
investors
On 1 December 2016, the Company as guarantor and TSL Manufacturing and
Distribution Limited as issuer (the “Issuer”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with two institutional investors (collectively “Subscribers”) pursuant
to which the Issuer has agreed to issue, and the Subscribers have agreed to
subscribe from the Issuer, senior secured notes in an aggregate principal amount of
up to HK$200 million (the “Notes”) maturing on the second anniversary of the issue
date of the Notes. The Notes may be extended for a further term of one year by the
Issuer with the consent of the Note holders.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, among other things, it will be an event of
default if Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie: (i) ceases to be the chairman of the Board; or (ii)
together with her close relatives (being her parents, spouse or children), cease to
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, the largest percentage or proportion of the
entire issued share capital of the Company (excluding any part thereof that carries
no voting rights) or to control the Company (where “control” is defined as meaning
the power or right (whether by way of ownership or shares, proxy, contract, agency
or otherwise or directly or indirectly) to: (a) cast or control the casting of more than
50% of the votes that might be cast at a general meeting of the Company; (b)
appoint or remove all or a majority of the directors or remove any director of the
Company; and/or (c) direct or cause the direction of the operations, management
and financial or other policies of the Company).

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, each Noteholder shall have the
right to require the Issuer to either redeem all or a part of such Notes held by such
Noteholder or in addition to and without prejudice to any of the Issuer’s other
payment obligations, pay default interest to such Noteholder in the amount
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Notes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been audited by EY.
EY will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of EY as independent auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
2017 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 May 2017
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRE RS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
code provisions, except for the code provision A.2.1, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On
Yee, Annie. The Board believes that Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie can provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The
Board also considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and
the chief executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Group. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company during the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this report is as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip (Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial)
(Resigned on 1 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. WANG Guosheng (Resigned on 1 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
Profile” of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
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The chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie. The Board considers that the current management structure has operated
efficiently. According to the Company’s practice, all major strategic decisions are taken by
the Board, or relevant committee of the Board, as duly constituted.
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The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and chief
executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors, representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management
The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as well as
the services and advice from the company secretary and senior management. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them and the
Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily
operation and management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the Year according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:
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Attending briefings/trainings/
seminars and/or reading materials
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Director Wt &R R E M R
Executive Directors HITES :

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie -3 St v/
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella @=Lt 7
Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip (Resigned on 1 June 2016) BRIZEESEH (R 2016 466 A1 H BHE) v
Non-executive Directors FHITESE :

Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG mEKELE v
Mr. WANG Guosheng (Resigned on 1 December 2016) FBRRR L (R2016 12 A 1H B H(F) 7
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUFHTES:

Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert EELCEE v
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael PRI ST v
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher e L v
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All the
said Board committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and
are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of the said Board committees are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Audit Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible for accounting and
financial reporting function, compliance officer, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system; and

. To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditor.

The Audit Committee oversees the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, reviews the internal audit report submitted by the Internal Audit Department of the
Company, reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes recommendations to
the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual financial results and
reports in respect of the Year and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of work,
re-appointment of external auditor, the audit plan in 2017 and approval of audit fee
quotation.
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Remuneration Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

. To make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of procedures for
developing the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and the senior
management, which shall ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration;

. To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management by reference to the performance of
the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions;

. To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
non-executive Directors by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions; and

. To review and approve the compensation arrangements for the executive Directors
and the senior management in connection with any loss or termination of their
offices or appointments.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Year to review and approve (i) the
discretionary bonus to the executive Directors and the senior management; and (ii) the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management and, to
review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The remuneration of the members of senior management of the Company by band for the
Year is set out below:
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Nomination Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

. To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors;

. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; and
. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into account
various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background and professional experience.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications,
experience, time commitment and independence (for appointment of independent
non-executive Director) and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Year. At the meeting, the Nomination
Committee reviewed and assessed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, independence of independent non-executive Directors and recommended on the
re-election of Directors at the 2017 AGM.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee meetings and
the general meetings of the Company held during the Year is set out in the table below:
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Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Director ERZEEE FMHEEE REEET RREFAE

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie gL+ 4/4 = /1 /1 /1

Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella h&EEL+t 4/4 - /1 - /1

Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip BRI ZE ST 0/1 = - - -
(Resigned on 1 June 2016) (R2016 %6 F1HEHE)

Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG EmEKEA 4/4 - _ _ 11

Mr. WANG Guosheng FEERR AL 2/3 = - - 11
(Resigned on 1 December 2016) (R2016 %12 F1H BHT)

Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert ERChE 4/4 2/2 1/ - 11

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael FRIA ST 3/4 1/2 1/ 1/1 11

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher BVREEE 4/4 1/2 11 /1 /1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s
financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section headed Independent
Auditor’s Report.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to EY, the external auditor of the Company,
was approximately HK$2,750,000 for audit services. No other assurance services fee was
paid/payable to EY. The remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young network firms were
approximately HK$70,300 for non-assurance services. HK$836,000 was paid/payable to
other audit firms for audit services of subsidiaries of the Group located outside Hong Kong.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually
through the Audit Committee. The executive management and the Internal Audit
Department of the Group have been delegated the responsibility of identifying and
evaluating the risks faced by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an
effective internal control system that covers governance, compliance, risk management,
financial as well as operational control.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review. The management is delegated to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function
or process within its scope of responsibility and authority. It is endeavoured to evaluate
and compare the level of risk against predetermined acceptable levels of risk. For risk
control and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not. Any material risk identified by the management
will be reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The management assists the Audit
Committee and the Board to manage and control such risks by ensuring an effective risk
management system is maintained and operated within the Group.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the established corporate
objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing reliable financial reporting
information and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and
procedures are also established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than
eliminate, different risks arising from different business and functional activities.
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The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays important role in enhancing internal control
system of the Group. It assists the Board in determining whether sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes and
standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group, under a
rotational cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit focus and audit
frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk assessment. Such
work plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the beginning of each
financial year. If any material risks or internal control defects are found, the Group’s
Internal Audit Department will discuss with respective department heads to have actions
agreed and subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory controls is
maintained. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the Audit Committee for
review and all improvement actions will be properly followed up by management to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent consulting firm to assist the Group’s
Internal Audit Department to provide professional internal audit services to the Group.
Such appointment aims to provide leadership to and enhance professionalism and
independence of the Group’s Internal Audit Department.

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the Listing Rules. The Group will
disclose inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the “safe harbours” provisions and satisfies the conditions
under the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group will ensure
that the information is kept strictly confidential.

The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or inside information
and established and implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries about
the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive Directors are authorized to communicate
with parties outside the Group.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the Year,
covering all material financial, operational and compliance controls, and it has considered
the Group’s risk management and internal control system to be effective and adequate.
There were no suspected material irregularities found or significant areas of concern
identified during the Year that might affect shareholders of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act”) as amended from time to time, registered shareholders of the
Company holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“SGM Requisitionists™)
can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at the registered office of the Company
(“Registered Office”), which is presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
purposes of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the SGM
Requisitionists.

The share registrars of the Company will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the
SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the share registrars of the
Company that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company Secretary of the
Company will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
the registered shareholders of the Company in accordance with all the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified
not in order, the SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and accordingly, a
SGM will not be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within twenty-one (21) days
of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed duly to
convene a SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within three (3) months from
the date of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the SGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general meeting
Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered shareholders of the
Company holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not
less than 100 of such registered shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the
Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2356 0215

Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents have been posted under the sub-section
“Constitutional Documents” of Corporate Governance section on the Company’s website
at ir.tslj.com. There are no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year under review.
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

Y A7 R BRI T

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 84 to 180, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 28 February 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 28 February 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

HREEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBREET RIS Y

Recognition of deferred tax assets
R A E

As at 28 February 2017, deferred tax assets regarding tax losses
carried forward recognised by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$22 million. The tax impact of unrecognised tax losses at the
applicable tax rates at 28 February 2017 was approximately HK$17
million. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
RZZE—tF-_A=+/\H ' EXBEEEREEERARAHES
BHELEHBEEANABE T a8t - R-T—tF=A
Z+N\B AERZMEEEREBERATENORIBLZENRBE
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The accounting policies and disclosure of the recognition of deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 29
to the consolidated financial statements.
FABRBEEENECHEEENETBRARBEEERFHR
REMBREMTE24 - 3R29 0

Our audit procedures included reviewing the Group’s latest profit forecast
and approved strategic business plan to evaluate management’s
assessment that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the future to utilise
the tax losses recognised and that it is probable that the deferred tax
assets would be recoverable within the statutory limited timeframe in the
countries for which the tax losses have arisen.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BARENEE ZEEEET P RUMELHN

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities regarding withholding tax on
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries established in Mainland China

SRR BB 57 2 [T B 2 B2 2K 53 BR 48 FI| ) 78 F0 FIT 15 552 1 4 FE 7
HE &

As at 28 February 2017, the Group recognised a deferred tax liability Our audit procedures included evaluating the management’s assumptions
of approximately HK$13 million for withholding taxes that would be and estimates in relation to the likelihood of the Group’s operations in
payable in respect of the unremitted earnings that are subject to Mainland China remitting their earnings in the foreseeable future, which
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland included the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flows for
China. Significant management judgement is required to determine dividend distribution and other financing needs of the Group, based on the
the amount and timing of the payment of dividends that will be latest approved strategic business plan. We also assessed the historical
distributed in the foreseeable future. The estimation process is highly accuracy of management’s assumptions and employed our tax specialists
based on assumptions, which are influenced by projected future to assist with the analysis and evaluation of the reasonableness of the

market and economic conditions. assumptions used.
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B o et BRI TEARRMISNEEGRE 2 BESEFE - BN EEEERRNELERE  AREZERMBEBZER BB
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the recognition of deferred
tax liabilities are included in notes 2.4 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEEEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEE TR A ES

Net realisable value of Inventories

FE 7 [ &% E

As at 28 February 2017, the Group recorded inventories of HK$1,527
million before provision for impairment of HK$48 million. The write-
down of inventories to net realisable value is estimated by
management through the application of judgement and the use of
highly subjective assumptions. During the year ended 28 February
2017, a net reversal of provision for impairment of inventories of
HK$4 million was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss based on management’s assessment.
RZE—+tF_A=Z+NH EEENTFEARBE
THEZFTEEET R ATFEREENASEONTN\BET &
BEZRAABNETERIRGAMEETEETSRFE - R
“T—tEF-AZFTNR  BEEEEFELNMEE - sTALKERE
mRANFERERBFEASERENEET -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment provision
on inventories are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRTERENSBERARE R AN RS PSR EM E2.4 -
37 e

Our audit procedures included the assessment of controls over identifying
and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, excess and other inventory
items whose costs may not be fully recoverable; evaluating the
methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by the Group in calculating
the impairments; and assessing the adequacy of the impairments recorded
by reviewing subsequent sales after the year end and a comparison with
historical sales records.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Qur report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Chau
Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 May 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LLOSS
o 13 5 4k 2%

Year ended 28 February 2017 2017 2016
HZE207F2A28BILFE Notes 2017 5% 2016 &
LiEss HK$’000 /8% T 7T HK$'000 7 # T T

Turnover 0 5 3,410,923 3,538,862
Cost of sales FHE A (1,884,203) (1,927,303)
Gross profit EF 1,526,720 1,611,559
Other income and (losses)/gains, net EH U A K (E18) Wz - F58 6 (399) 2,134
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHE (1,243,051) (1,341,720)
Administrative expenses 1TER (167,100) (163,083)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS ez 116,170 108,890
Finance costs B 7% & 8 (64,288) (62,584)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BBt BT 2 A 7 51,882 46,306
Income tax expense 5% & A 11 (28,678) (22,493)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEZEF 23,204 23,813
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EEEFEBAG

Owners of the Company PN/NETE 2 =N 23,177 23,623

Non-controlling interests IR AR AR R A 27 190

23,204 23,813

EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEEANELETRER

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted EARREE 13 11.0 cents il 11.2 centsAll




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 0841085

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ok 1 4 I A 2R

Year ended 28 February 2017 2017 2016
HE2007F2 A28 1LEE Note 2017 F 2016 5

B 5E HK$’000 8% F 7t HK$ 000 &% F 7t
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERA 23,204 23813

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit 2 HEEE

Other comprehensive income not HEFAEEHFIEFIEHRR
to be reclassified to profit or loss  ZHttZEUE :
in subsequent years:

Remeasurement gain on defined AERMFENER

benefit plan WA 28 5,656 4,601
Income tax effect FriSfiz & (933) (759)
Net other comprehensive income HEFAEEFSEFTERER
not to be reclassified to ZHMEmEkEFE
profit or loss in subsequent years 4,723 3,842

Other comprehensive loss to be BRFEEHPERERRZ
reclassified to profit or loss Hit 2 MEEE -
in subsequent years:

Exchange differences on translation A& GINE7% > [E 1 =58

of foreign operations (68,742) (80,433)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEBHMSMEER  HIBRHE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (64,019) (76,591)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEEHEEBRARE

FOR THE YEAR (40,815) (52,778)
Attributable to: EE{E%EU&%%%E :

Owners of the Company NREA A (40,797) (53,019)

Non-controlling interests 3E? PR PR R 318) 241

(40,815) (52,778)




CONSOLIDATED STATE

FINANCIAL POSITION
o 1 5 IR 1L R

CNT OF

At 28 February 2017 2017 2016
201742 A28 H Notes 2017 & 2016 £
B EE HK$’000 8% F 7t HK$ 000 & #F 7t
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M W= NEE 14 141,178 139,441
Intangible assets mREE 15 99 99
Other asset HEib&EE 16 500 500
Prepayments and deposits B ZEES 19 52,655 43,379
Time deposits TFHTER 20 - 71,429
Deferred tax assets LR IEEE 29 55,214 50,692
249,646 305,540
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories T8 17 1,478,679 1,607,509
Trade receivables FEUSAR R 18 235,709 254,642
Prepayments, deposits and other AR He REM
receivables JEU TR 19 163,098 15,517
Tax recoverable ALY B 7 IE 1,978 7,649
Time deposits TEHATFE K 20 166,801 181,891
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 20 323,657 202,549
2,379,922 2,369,757
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Trade payables ARESN 21 (316,392) (271,633)
Other payables and accruals HitbE SRR IERTE A 22 (259,317) (244,471)
Derivative financial instruments TESMTA 23 - (3,648)
Gold loans =5¢HE 24 (43,523) (98,849)
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEIRIT R HAL
borrowings B3 25 (269,602) (610,925)
Convertible bonds Al AR E 5 26 - (12,500)
Finance lease payables EARmERE 27 - (1,632)
Tax payable FES R (22,448) (23,967)
(911,282) (1,267,625)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,468,640 1,102,132
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABEE
LIABILITIES 1,718,286 1,407,672
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At 28 February 2017 2017 2016
201742 A28 H Notes 2017 5 2016 &
LiEs3 HK$’000 /8% T 7T HK$'000 & # T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Other payables and accruals Hin e R R BT E B 22 (6,595) (6,656)
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EERTT R E AL
borrowings =64 25 (709,775) -
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 - (336,041)
Finance lease payables ERmERE 27 - (88)
Employee benefit obligations EERAERDS 28 (11,240) (17,863)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAEE 29 (16,394) (16,346)
(744,004) (376,994)
NET ASSETS EERE 974,282 1,030,678
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of AATEE ANELER
the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves fE1E 32 (921,841) (978,219)
(974,425) (1,030,803)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R R A 143 125
TOTAL EQUITY EREAE (974,282) (1,030,678)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 May 2017.
BEGR2017F5 A 23 A LA T2 o

Yau On Yee, Annie IR % &
Ng Yi Kum, Estella (R &2

)
)
)
)

Directors &%



CONSOLIDATED STATE

CHANGES IN EQUITY
ok O BE A 8 ) &

CNT OF

Year ended 28 February 2017 Attributable to owners of the Company
BENTF2ABALEE RATHA AES
Equity
Share  Capitaland  component Non-
Issued Share option other of convertible  Retained  Proposed controlling Total
Note capital ~ premium reserve reserves bonds profits  final dividend Total interests equity
BXR  WERES Rk FER
M BREARE  ROEE BRERE AtRE  EEDR REAF RKERS A% REE: EngE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETT  A%Tr  B%Tr AT BRI ATt A%t A%Tr  B%Tr AT
(note30)  (note40  (note40  (note40 (notes 26and (note 12)
(©@) ©w) (X)) 40 ()(v))
(FE30) (W40 (Wstdo  (WzEd0 (M6 R (KizER)
©0) ©w) ()i)) 40(Q)(iv))
At 1March 2015 R20543A1R 52,584 123,365 17169 254937 8,600 630,322 7782 1,094,759 (451) 1,094,308
Profit for the year KAEERF = - - - - 23,623 - 23623 190 23813
Other comprehensive loss AEE i 2H
for the year: B
Exchange differenceson &S EK 2
translation of foreign EiER
operations = = = (80,484) = = = (80,484) 51 (80,433)
Remeasurement gainon Rz &I ElE)
defined benefit plan, BERA -
net of tax pillcy il = - - - - 3842 - 3842 - 3842
Total comprehensive loss AEE2EERER
for the year - - - (80,484) - 27,465 - (53,019) 241 (52,778)
Capital contribution from  FBZA FIFEHMR
non-controlling RELE
shareholders of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - 85 85
Dividends paid EIRRE = - - - - (3155) (7.782) (10,937) - (10.937)
Proposed final dividend R RER S
(2015/16) (2015/16) 12 - - - - - (5469) 5469 - - -
At 29 February 2016 R2016%52A 298 52,584 123,365 17069* 174453 8,600 649,163 5469* 1030803 (125) 1,030,678




Year ended 28 February 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company
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BEWTF2ABAILEFE RAREE AL
Equity
component
Share Capital and of Proposed Non-
Issued Share option other  convertible  Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital  premium reserve  reserves bonds profits  dividend Total interests equity
ARk ARRES BIK FER
M ERORE  ROHOEE BRERE HtHE  <EEDH RERF KBRS B REER EREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
BETr BT BETn ANt BETr ATz B¥Tr BT B¥Tn AT
(note 30)  (note40  (note 40  (note 40 (notes 26 and (note 12)
(@) Q)] (c)ii)) 40 (c)(iv))
(Fizr30) (M40 (Fizrdo (M40 (MH26RK (FzE12)
) ©w) (i) 41(c)iv))
At TMarch 2016 M2016%3 818 52,584 123,365* 17,069* 174,453 8,600* 649,163 5,469* 1,030,803 (125) 1,030,678
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - - 23177 - 23177 27 23,204
Other comprehensive loss REEEMZEEE -
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNER
translation of foreign EXES
operations - - - (68,697) - - - (68,697) (45)  (68,742)
Remeasurement gain on RERMEIMER
defined benefit plan, WA - MERHE
net of tax - - - - - 4,723 - 4,723 - 4,723
Total comprehensive loss AEERAFRAE
for the year - - - (68,697) - 27,900 - (40,797) (18) (40,815)
Equity-settled share option AR A B B e
arrangement T 3 - - (1,450) - - - - (1,450) - (1,450)
Early redemption of convertible 122 BEE Ak ES
bonds 26 - - - - (8,600) 3,093 - (5,507) - (5,507)
Dividends paid BIERE - - - - - (3,155) (5,469) (8,624) - (8,624)
Proposed final dividend BERBHRE
(2016/17) (2016/17) 2 - - - - - (7,888) 7,888 - - -
At 28 February 2017 M2017%2 4288 52,584 123,365* 15,719 105,756* - 669,113* 7,888 974,425 (143) 974,282
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$921,841,000 (2016: G WERFRBREAKRGEMBERRARZEEREEBE

HK$978,219,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

921,841,000 7T (2016 £F : 7#&#& 978,219,000 7T) °



CONSOLIDATED STATE
OF CASH FLLOWS

S R = s
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NT

Year ended 28 February 2017 2017 2016
HZE207F2A28BILFE Notes 2017 5% 2016 &
LiEss HK$’000 /8% T 7T HK$'000 7 # T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax IR 51,882 46,306
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs &R 8 64,288 62,584
Interest income ISYON 6 (5,732) (8,423)
Loss on disposal of items of ZEEYE  BERLE
property, plant and equipment IHE BB 7 903 139
Depreciation e 7 59,642 62,305
Reversal of equity-settled share o] % DA RS A 4% & 2 B A A
option expense A 7 (1,450) -
Movements in employee benefit ETRNEKEE)
obligations (967) 893
(Reversal of provision)/provision (BEDR)  BETE
for impairment of inventories =R EEFE 7 (3,629) 365
Fair value loss on gold loans EEARATBETE
designated as at fair value RE2HZEHENAT
through profit or loss EEFEE 7 10,372 9,627
Fair value loss on derivative PTHESRMTAENATEE
financial instruments FEE 7 806 3,580
Gain on early redemption of R ERE AR ES
convertible bonds Wz 6 (3,000) -
173,115 177,376
Decrease in inventories GFERD 79,528 94,151
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUWARTOR D, (#E00)
receivables 14,467 (42,321)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FEIK - HBe REA
and other receivables FEUR R N (72,526) (20,937)
Decrease in trade payables FEAH AR TR 51,707 17,506
Increase/(decrease) in other BN R R IERT &R
payables and accruals #En Cri ) 24,732 (12,412)
(Decrease)/increase in derivative TESRMIABRE
financial liabilities CRA),/ 35 (4,454) 68
Cash flows generated from CEEBEENERS
operations 266,569 213,431
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/ B (&) BB BFIEFH
refunded (2,665) 138
Taxes paid other than Hong Kong BB PASM [ i I8 (36,756) (33,324)
Net cash flows from KEEBEEA RS
operating activities mE R 227,148 180,245
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Year ended 28 February 2017 2017 2016
BE20175F2A28R1EFE Notes 20174 2016 4F
B3 HK$’000 /8% T 7T HK$'000 7 # T T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received BEUF B 5,732 8,423
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits TEHFTORD, () 72,288 (104,492)
Purchases of items of property, BB MR RRHIER

plant and equipment 14 (63,217) (58,676)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEWE - MBS RREER

property, plant and equipment Fr{S5H 557 167
Net cash flows BEEBEE/(FTR)Z

from/(used in) investing activities BREmEFRE 15,360 (154,578)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new trade finance LB BB ERIE 38,364 9,388
Repayment of trade finance EEEIME (266,876) (23,668)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIGRITE R RIEA 644,197 146,704
Repayment of bank loans HEIRITER (242,510) (107,389)
New gold loans it EeHEE - 69,781
Repayment of gold loans 1*“‘%%%@% (57,961) 9,600
Proceeds from new other loans IS H M E RS RIE 200,000 (764)
Repayment of other loan ffLEﬁﬂE«m (4,723) -
Redemption of convertible bonds (BB ARG E SRR (374,604) =
Capital element of finance lease BMERASENRNASE

payments (1,720) (2,453)
Interest paid BRFE (41,210) (31,670)
Dividends paid BARE (8,624) (10,937)
Interest element of finance lease Bl & M E TR F S &5

payments (32) (141
Capital contribution from non-controlling K& A 73 &AL R H &

shareholders of a subsidiary - 85
Net cash flows (used in)/ BMEEE (FrA) EEZ

from financing activities BeneF8 (115,699) 58,536
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBESEBEY2ZMFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 126,809 84,203
Cash and cash equivalents at RENZEERBESEEY

beginning of the year 202,549 125,681
Effect of foreign exchange rate INETER S B E - JFE

changes, net (5,701) (7,335)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELZRERBEEZEY

AT END OF THE YEAR 323,657 202,549
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEB/NEFIN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 20 323,657 202,549




NOTES TO THE

FINANCIAL STATE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing
of jewellery products and the provision of service.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company is Partner
Logistics Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”),
and the ultimate holding company is Blink Technology Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued ordinary/

Place of incorporation/ registered share

LNTS

DEREEER

FmBAE (B BRAR(ARAR D IRESR
EAMRZcBEREEAR - KRR ZEMifE
BRI Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11 * Bermuda ° "R R Z T B F R
BEBNEAMEREI0REETHAEMTB
FE o

AEBZIEXBRBE  HE
FAREBRTS ©

EERAB REBE XS K APartner
Logistics lelted%EE ERA T - REERAA
B BB B & B 5 7% i B 32 A9 Blink Technology
Limited * M S AERRA T BHIZIR LA -

MELQRZER
ARARIMBRRZFIFNAT

Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
BT
BRAL/ G R BERAR AT A
a8 B AR A RERDE TEEK
Direct Indirect
B B
TSL Investment (B.V.1.) BVI HK$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited® RBEZHS 7E1,0007T REZER
Ankenne Jewelry Co. Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Jewellery trading
BRKEARARS B BT KEES
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery The People’s Republic Renminbi (‘RMB”) - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#**@ of China (“PRC") 20,000,000 KETE
L RIEFEHEBR AR e hEAREMB (HE]) AR¥20,000,0007T



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

092 | 093

1. ARREEER @

5 PN bA= ¢ SAC )
ARRIMBRARZFHENT : (&)

Issued ordinary/

registered share Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
BT
BR3L/ & EEBA KA TG
g = B AR AR REBDE FEEK
Direct Indirect
B B
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited**@ HE AR#3000,0007T KETE
ERENEEEER AR
Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery PRC United States - 100 Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited**@(“BTSL") I dollars (“US$”) and trading
IR RERR AT e 2,000,000 KERERES
2,000,000 7T
Concepts Management (H.K.) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trademarks holding and
Limited B Vet AW investment in
BIRER(BB)ERAR trademarks
RERRRRERZ
Excellent Ford Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited (“EF”) B 75%10,000 7T %EE5H
RGEEERAR([RHEE]
Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#**@ hE AR#1000,0007C HKETE
BMNBEHREER AR e
Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited*@ I 758,000,000 7T HEE5H

BMEEEEERARC



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 15 i 25 B 5 (s

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ATREEER (#)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ML T2 &R ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) ARFIMBARIZFHEBOT : (B)

Issued ordinary/

Place of incorporation/ registered share Percentage of equity attributable
Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
21T
BRAL MR ZERA ARAB PTG
HE S B FE AR AR RET L FTEER
Direct Indirect
BHiZ B
Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#**@ I AR 2,000,000 KEZTE
FMEEHEERAR "
Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing and
Company Limited#*@ I AR 3000,0007T franchising
EMNEZFEERAR KETERMBED
Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited#**@ RE AR 3000,0007T HEESH
RN EHEERAR "
Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Goldsmith and jewellery
BB 75 #10,000 7T trading
TeRUEES
Infinite Assets Corp® BVI HK$277,254 - 100 Investment holding
EBERES A58 277,254 7T REER
Liberty Mark Limited® BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding

HBELES 1570 REZR



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/
registered share

1. RARREEEHGE)
MR ZER ()
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ARARMBRAZFBEOT : ()

Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
BRAL R TERA NN
1 e Sk Rl BREF L FTEEK
Direct Indirect
BHiZ B
Richfun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BREMEER AT B BT REER
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#**@ hE AKR#1000,0007T KETE
LEREKREER AR
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#**@ & AE#3,000,0007T KETE
LERERBER AR
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited*@ s 758,000,000 7T distribution of
A ERKEEHBRAR jewellery
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Trading Company I AR #100,0007T HEESH
Limited#**@
RYBNEHRBRE HER AR
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Logistic and supply chain
Logistic Company A AR #100,0007T management
Limited#=@ Y R AL R E

A AEHHBEDRERAR e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/
registered share

1. ARREEER@E
ML E &R ()

KARMBRRZFHBENOT : (8)

Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
81T
BRAL MR ZERA ¥ N/NET )6
7B B FE AR A RET L FTEER
Direct Indirect
BHiZ B

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company Hong Kong HK$46,982,090 - 100 Jewellery trading and
Limited (“TSLJ")** a8 7E# 46,982,090 7T retailing

WK EGR AR KEEIHRTE
([ IRBERE ) *

Tse Sui Luen (Guangzhou) PRC HK$21,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing,
Jewellery Company Limited Gl 75 21,000,000 75 distribution of
(“TSLGZ”) #*@ jewellery and

HimEE (BN KEBR AR franchising
([N 1) e KERE DR INEED

Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) BVI US$6,863 - 100 Investment holding
Limited® KBEZHS 6,863% T REER

inR A (R ER AR

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing Malaysia Malaysian Ringgits - 100 Jewellery retailing
Sdn. Bhd.@ SR 3,300,000 HKETE

BRATEE
3,300,000 7T

Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) PRC HK$12,500,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Jewellery Company I 75#12,500,000 7T distribution of
Limited®@ jewellery

i ORI KE AR A A RERE RS i

Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Trading PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited***@ HE AR#1,00,0007T KEZH

FimB ORIDEERRAR e



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/
registered share

1. RARREEEHGE)
MR ZER ()

096 | 097

ARARMBRAZFBEOT : ()

Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
BRAL R TERA NN
HE B Rl BREF L FTEEK
Direct Indirect
BHiZ B
TSL Management Services Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Management and
Limited B B 2T administrative services
Wi EERBEER AR B8 RITBART
TSL Jewellery (Export) Hong Kong HK$19,824,775 - 100 Jewellery trading and
Company Limited HE 75#519,824,775 7T retailing
HIMBEAE (L A) ARAR KEEHRTE
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited® Macau Macau Pataca - 100 Jewellery retailing
TSLIKE CRFY) BRRAA® BFT ("MOP”) 100,000 KEZE
JRP9#5100,000 7T
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$42,000,390 - 100 Jewellery retailing
HIMBIAE (BH) AR AR &k 758 42,000,390 7T KETE
TSL Manufacturing and Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Distribution Limited (“TSL B 75 67,000,000 7T procurement,
M&D”)## manufacturing and
HIinBEEE R D HBR AR distribution of
([FHmBREE R D 8H]) jewellery
SHERE
TSL Properties Management Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Property holding and
Limited B #1000 7T investment
B EEEERAR HEMERKRE
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha Japan Japanese Yen - 96.5 Jewellery retailing and
(“TSLJKK")***@ HA 75,000,000 wholesales
TSLIBRA S 4t ([TSLIKK]) =@ 75,000,000 AT KETER#E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

# Unofficial translation
s In addition to the ordinary shares, TSLJ has issued 36,574 deferred shares of HK$1,000
each

i During the year, TSL M&D issued senior secured notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$200 million maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date of the notes.

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise
> Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company
o Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company

@ Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network

A Incorporated during the year

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments and gold loans which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

DA REEER (@)
t OFERBA
W BREBRIN - MIRBREE BT 36574RERE

#£1,000 JT Z JEIERL

i FR HRBRERDHBETASRBEREYE
200,000,000 7T ¥ A SR 45 35 17 B B e 5t 55 — (AR
FRMz BEGERRE -

* RBFBEAEEMRINEDRE
- REFEEZEMABRAEAR
REARNEEEIMABREEAR

e AR IR BB LK E TR EB M
KB B R B FEX

“ RERRKIL

BERRLERMINBARRZHMBRARAAREER
BRERZEEYIBRAERFEEIZRNNA
A - BEERR/RHEEMHBAR ZFIEBERRE
Rk -

mAEE

WEFBREDBRRELSHAMRASRMBHES
BHRELA (RERETBUBRELER - BB
BRI RE) BEETERMNZ G RAIRE
BRREPIREERREMRE - WFMIEI]R
x BRUEeRmTIARESBEENARFEER
B HUBRRELRAERERE - hFHBR
RAETEW  RERIHRE  MBEEEGAERS
REOIRTRIB -



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 28 February 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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IRBLEE ()

mEEE
NFAMBBRRBEARRREMB AR (KBA
[AREE ) EZ201752A288 ILFE 2 B K
x-MBRRAAARAREEENHELEN 2 ER
(BREEEEER) EAKENRESHEEHR
MASZKEEESAIZDR - WhEENRBHIE
BN T AEEEEREY AT
RN 2B AERN) ZERER - BNEGE
HliE o

EARRUAEERIEEAEERELARKRZEIR
SRSBLENE - AEBEZRAAHBERR
BRAFGESEHEREHSEEES - 855

(@ BHEREHRZHEMERERFAEAZAZA
Bk

(o) eEMAOLBHERZER &
(© AREZEERMECRSE-

M B R B B RR IR AR R Z R RS R &
RAEARRR BN HRRE - HBARZ
XEEAEERGEENEZ ARGAAR &
BRIERIRALIEZ AL

1B R EMEE IR B 2 S AK M) BER A
RAGEE AR R ER - AEEEEHIE
ERRRERASRHARTER - IAEEALR
Az EE  AfEREE  ARBERAEEKE
RAZAZZHPAN - AXRRERE - GHRER
BIRERNZEEE -

fis) 5 B R B R BB R L SCHE A P B A Bl & SRR
M=IREHIE TR K — R Z AN R ES
AEBEENFGEEREDRAYEKREFES
B N RKREENRZHBARMAEEDE
B AERERRH ARERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including

goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair

value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or

loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(201M)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(20M)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

Reqgulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRS has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements and there have been no significant changes to
the accounting policies applied in these financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 23 EEAERERZEBHBEREEA
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been AEBRANRATBREEAATEB/MBERE
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. B2 ] REAERT BB RS 2R
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based BB BIRE LR E 25 BROZHORE258
Payment Transactions? BEIAR Kt &’
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with BB RELERE 45 RAZBIBHREER
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts? EHES EIREBTARERNG
ERAEAHRBA?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEMBREENEIR SRTA?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BRAMBREENE0RR REFEABELAXEE
HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* BHEHERE 285 RElZFMEELES
QoM BT A EE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? BEMBREERE LR KEEPEHZUA?
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from BREMBREERE R E BB REER
Contracts with Customers? EHEN ELRKEEFEHZ
WA?
HKFRS 16 Leases® BREMBREELE 65 HE’
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative' BECHERZIRETA HEFHE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for BBGENERREIA A B S B H R
Unrealised Losses' HE
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property? BRHENFAOREIR HEREREYF?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs? 204 EZ 2006 FHH.Z SREBHBRELEA
2014-2016 Cycle FREH EHE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 1 20171 A1 B AR RIIA 2 & 5T BRI 4 2K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 2018 F 1 A1 Bk AR R Z S5 HIM AN
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 g R2019F1 A1 Bk AR RS 2 5T HIME
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption 4 i) A T TE 0 ) M AR AR B B - MERT T ERAR
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and AEBE MR EFEN LTSRS 2ER 2
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HETE  HHNREEEHEHRTILRKEBITNE
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations or financial BB MG ERE AN EE 2 8 EERMBEARN

position. BRERTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 15 i 25 B 5 (s

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 March 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard upon adoption and expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also intended
to help ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 March 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15
upon adoption.

ERMERER 2 ERIHEREER (&)

EHRBRERANAREE 2 BB B HREERZE
—FERMT

R2014F9R  BEAGSHMASBMHE BT KR
EREBFORZ JRIRA  EESRMTAEBEZ
FRERER » AR BB G ERIE 395 R BB
BRELERE K 2 A LATMA - 2R3 A
SRR BERSPSHEEZFERTE - &
EEFBHE2018F1 A1BREABEHIEREE
RSB OSSR - REBIBEFERMZENZHER
TERA RN B B B iR S A B 9SS AL E B
BEEZDERTEELATE -

ERUBREENE TR —E2H 2 ARR
FERA - UERRERTPAHNIEA - RIEFE
MBWMELENF ST WARRZEBRRER
BHREFPEREERAREMEREAIZKRE -
BERMBREERE L FOENRYE T E R
RIRAZ EBEBIETTE - ZE/TS AEZH
EUEREERBERTE  BEIWUALE A
BITEME  TRMEZENEERBERE &
B 8 B LA T T B K ik R 2 B R o s R RIS ER
REBMBMELRRT ARG WAERNH
FE o RIN2016F6 A BEGMAGRMAEE
MIEWELRFSFETA - N FRE RN
B EEHSBENREME FEAEREBAZEA
¥E 5| R ANBERE T Al A KB 2 BRI - ZHERT
AN B R B BB N RN BB B 15 S A58
1S5RS AEE —BUb e A R KRB A RER 2K
AREFHEIRE - AEBIBHN 20185181 HHRA
BN RS LERNESS - B AT EENEEE
BT E RIS RN RN R IR -



258

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2.3
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and
finance leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 March 2019 and certain
portion of the operating lease commitments will be required to be recognised as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group will
perform a more detailed analysis upon the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 15 i 25 B 5 (s

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or [0ss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 28
February. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and gold loans at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 = based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) theparty is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person:

@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;

or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
0) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HA 5 2% B 5 ceo

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FESHEEHE @R

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) aperson identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 55 years
Plant and machinery 3to 7 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1to 10 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HA 5 2% B 5 ceo

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain

with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,

rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HA 5 2% B 5 ceo

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and accruals,
derivative financial instruments, gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds and finance lease payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged
on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HA 5 2% B 5 ceo

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability
at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability is
recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not
remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in

the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as gold forward contracts to
hedge its gold price risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis for homogenous items while it is determined
on an actual unit cost basis for certain unique or specific items and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidation statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is
the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail shops in Hong
Kong and The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which allow customers to
accumulate points award credits upon purchase of goods in the shops and joining
the programmes. The points award credits can then be redeemed for goods or
other gifts, subject to certain terms and conditions. A portion of the consideration
received for the sales transactions from which points award credits are accrued is
allocated to the points award credits issued which is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the points award credits are redeemed or expired.

The consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to their
fair value of goods or gifts exchanged after considering past experience of
redemption, discounted to the present value as appropriate. Such consideration is
not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s
obligations have been fulfilled.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c)  service income, in the period when services are rendered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees
and suppliers. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby suppliers render goods or services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November
2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
valuation model (the “Binomial Model”), further details of which are given in note 31
to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits

Salaries

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the
Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are discounted and
stated at their present value.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC, Malaysia and
Japan are required to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal government. Contributions are made based on the requirements of the
respective local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension schemes.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of lump sum long service amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary, discounted
to its present value, and the fair value of any related plan assets is deducted. The
discount rate is the yield of Exchange Fund Notes at the end of the reporting period
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from long service payment obligations, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

. service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

. net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located other than Hong Kong are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges
of its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charge in the
future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets

are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.

Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the

carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,

which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.

Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon estimate and the level of future taxable profits.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 28
February 2017 was HK$21,885,000 (2016: HK$22,385,000). The amount of
unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses at 28 February 2017 was
HK$17,497,000 (2016: HK$10,272,000). Further details are contained in note 29 to
the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses.

These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. The directors reassess the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the current market condition. The
directors reassess the recoverability at the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the fair
value of goods and gifts redeemed in the prior years and the probability of
redemption is estimated by the directors based on past experience. Actual results
may differ from the estimation.

Income tax

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in circumstances and tax legislation.

Equity-settled share option expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to certain directors, employees and
service providers determined at the date of grant of the respective share options is
expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s
share option reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share options, the Binomial
Model was used. The Binomial Model is one of the generally accepted
methodologies used to calculate the fair value of the share options. The Binomial
Model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected dividend
yield and expected life of options. Any changes in these assumptions can
significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the share options.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
business nature and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Retail Business (including Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Malaysia);

(b)  Wholesale Business; and

(c)  Other Businesses.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Retail Business includes direct retail sale of jewellery products to end consumers
through the physical outlets carrying the trademark of TSL| #{35 8 . It also includes
the service fee income received from provision of retail management services to
other retailers.

Wholesale Business includes wholesale sale of jewellery products to customers.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that gain on early redemption of convertible bonds, finance costs and
income tax expense are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude gold loans, derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities, finance lease payables, and employee benefit obligations as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BESIER (E)
Retail Wholesale Other
Business Business Businesses Total
TEEK 3R HhZER st
Year ended 28 February 2017 HZE2017F2H28HILFE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I BT T BT T
Segment revenue: DEPE LS ¢
Sales to external customers HEBRBE TINERE 2,769,672 441,261 164,846 3,375,779
Other revenue EH A 35,144 - - 35,144
2,804,816 441,261 164,846 3,410,923
Segment results DEBELE 50,556 70,312 (7,698) 113,170
Reconciliation: FIE -
Gain on early redemption of IR R IE O AR R E A ek
convertible bonds 3,000
Finance costs Bi5E R (64,288)
Income tax expense FisHt (28,678)
Profit for the year REFZRBF 23,204
Segment assets: DEPEE 2,333,481 154,903 73,992 2,562,376
Reconciliation: A -
Deferred tax assets BIETRIBEE 55,214
Tax recoverable A] Yg B 57 18 11,978
Total assets 1B E 2,629,568
Segment liabilities: PEEE (490,498) (88,263) (3,543) (582,304)
Reconciliation: AT -
Gold loans H=eHE (43,523)
Interest-bearing bank and SHEBRITREMER
other borrowings (979,377)
Tax payable FEREETE (22,448)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEEE (16,394)
Employee benefit obligations EERBHEL (11,240)
Total liabilities FEN=Ery (1,655,286)
Other segment information: Hith &R :
Depreciation e 58,084 898 660 59,642
Capital expenditure* BARRS * 61,597 8 1,612 63,217

< Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * BARSZBRERNEME - BE KK
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4. REIBES R

Retail Wholesale Other

Business Business Businesses Total

TEXER BB Hfth 275 st
Year ended 29 February 2016 HZE2016F2H829HILFE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T BT IT
Segment revenue: DEBE S ¢
Sales to external customers HERE TINKRESE 3,113,835 362,027 29,795 3,505,657
Other revenue H g A 33,205 - - 33,205

3,147,040 362,027 29,795 3,538,862
Segment results DEBELE 101,176 21,324 (13,610) 108,890
Reconciliation: FIE -
Finance costs B 15 & (62,584)
Income tax expense FTiSH (22,493)
Profit for the year REEZRF 23,813
Segment assets: DEEE : 2,440,945 108,634 67,377 2,616,956
Reconciliation: FHE -
Deferred tax assets RETRIHE = 50,692
Tax recoverable BEEE 7,649
Total assets BEE 2,675,297
Segment liabilities: DEERE - (444,629) (75,749) (2,382) (522,760)
Reconciliation: FET -
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4&&RI T A (3,648)
Gold loans H5oHE (98,849)
Interest-bearing bank and SARBEITREMER

other borrowings (610,925)

Convertible bonds AR ES (348,541)
Tax payable FER IR (23,967)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRTEAE (16,346)
Finance lease payables FENmEHREE 1,720)
Employee benefit obligations EERHEL (17,863)
Total liabilities BEE (1,644,619)
Other segment information: Hith &R
Depreciation e 62,158 13 134 62,305
Capital expenditure* BEARMAS 58,649 27 - 58,676

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.

. EARXBERENE  BER&E -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Geographical information

RESBER (@)

(@) HEEHR
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Revenue from external customers IREF &R
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 388 T 7T HK$'000 /& ¥ T T
Hong Kong and Macau B RIEM 1,301,373 1,695,532
Mainland China A R, 2,067,364 1,795,801
Other countries HBxR 42,186 47,529
3,410,923 3,538,862

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customers.

biEERER DIRE P ARSI D

Non-current assets FnBEE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$°000 & #& T J HK$'000 &%+t
Hong Kong and Macau BB RIEM 99,378 107,138
Mainland China B At 44,088 36,128
Other countries HBxR 3,984 2,837
147,450 146,103

The non-current asset information above is based on the location of the
assets and excludes rental deposits, time deposits and deferred tax assets.

(b) Information about major customers
The turnover from the Group’s largest customer amounted to less than 10%
of the Group’s total turnover for the current and prior years.

R EEER IR EEMELEE
7 YTEEHERS  EHRFERREL

MIHAE

(b)y FHETEEFFZEHR
RAFERANEE  REAKERAE
Pz EEBRIEAEEBEXEPRNI0%
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5

6.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of
jewellery products and the provision of service. Turnover represents the sales value
of jewellery products sold to customers, net of value added tax and discount, and
service income. An analysis of turnover is as follows:

ERE

AEENTIERGREE HE HEKREEM
KR iRTS o EXBRINRIBER RITMRHE
TEPZRE SN HEEEZFERREK

AN EEBZAMMT

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 /& T HK$'000 7 ¥ Tt
Sales of jewellery products SHEKRE 3,375,779 3,505,657
Service income BRTEWA 35,144 33,205
3,410,923 3,538,862
OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET HW AR (B18) ks - B8
2017 2016
2017 ¢ 2016 ¢
HK$’000 /&% T T HK$'000 &% T T
Interest income F B WA 5,732 8,423
Foreign exchange differences, net HEE KRR (4,437) 4,502
Government grant* AT R B * 1,279 1,759
Fair value loss on gold loans designated as  f57& BIZ A EBEI ERE 2
at fair value through profit or loss HeHENAFEEEER (10,372) (9.627)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TEEMIANATFEEFESE
instruments (806) (3,580)
Gain on early redemption of convertible 12 5208 [0 A 4R R £ 5 s (BT = 30)
bonds (note 30) 3,000 =
Gain/(loss) on sales of scrap gold HEESEARA (EE) 938 (180)
Repair income #HIERA 681 717
Others Hipth 3,586 120
(399) 2,134

This represents subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies.

LTy 35 B P B N T B R G RO R B o SR SRS
I FE s ANE R AT AT AR PR AT 2 16 AF ©
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE AT B R

AEBZBRABFEREGEA)

2017 2016
2017 2016 £
HK$’000 /8% T 7T HK$'000 7 # T T
Cost of goods sold* SHER A 1,887,832 1,926,938
(Reversal of provision)/provision for (BfEOE)  BEFEE
impairment of inventories, net AIEIRFEE - FE (3,629) 365
Depreciation (note 14) e (FsE14) 59,642 62,305
Minimum lease payments in respect of KEREz REREMK
operating leases™* 196,254 207,467
Auditor’s remuneration (2 Gl 2,750 2,560
Employee benefit expense (including EERAFAZ (BIEESHE
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (FF5E9)) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  HFeRkEMEF 589,780 580,206
Reversal of equity-settled share option B AL E 2 BREER
expense (1,450) -
Pension scheme contributions*** JETE R FGRIRET B 5K 8,119 9,556
Employee benefit obligations (note 28) B EBAIZES (M15E28) 545 1,273
596,994 591,035
Fair value loss on gold loans designated as 5§ AR A FEBEITEEGZ =%
at fair value through profit or loss**** HENAFEEFER 10,372 9,627
Fair value loss on derivative financial TESBITANRATEEFEE
instruments**** 806 3,580
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant EE¥W% - MERBHIER 2 EE
and equipment 903 139

* Cost of goods sold includes HK$94,547,000 (2016: HK$94,918,000) relating to
employee benefit expense, depreciation, and operating lease payments, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these
types of expenses.

. Not including commission payments in relation to sales counters in department stores
and shopping malls.

o At 28 February 2017, there were no forfeited contributions available to the Group to
reduce its contributions to pension scheme in future years (2016: Nil).

***  These amounts are included in “Other income and (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above gold loans and
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group is to manage the Group’s
gold price exposure. Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting.

Ak

SHE AT BIE R BB 94,547,000 7T (2016 4 -
785 94,918,0007T) MIE B BAMFS - & R
HEER  BHESBETE D HIE A LMHIEE
1ARARA R ©

TEEXNTHEZBERNBEEARAREEMN
e e

2017462 A28 B A& E & B R FRA R
AR IR B R IRET &I R (2016 F < &) -

FEBERETHMRAR(EB]R), W - F5E]
TEESNHER  CRAESHEERITAERTA
EEEEAKEZESERRAR - ZFHERE
AT E LR ERIEZ R -
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HX¥EH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: WEBRZOMAT :
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 /84 T 7T HK$'000 7 # Tt
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts BRITER  BXRHMER
and other loans HF B 23,821 16,419
Interest on convertible bonds AR AE 2 ) F B 36,057 43,273
Interest on finance leases RERAENFE 32 141
Interest on gold loans =2HENFIE 3,183 2,751
Amortisation of debt issuance BIHEBBITRBEA
transaction costs 1,195 -
64,288 62,584
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 9. EEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section RIBEEMRA - BB RQREGIFE 383(N@) ~ (b) *
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the OROBARAG (HEEEFZER)BH -
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as AEEZEEMEHEBNT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 £
HK$’000 8% T 7T HK$'000 7 ¥ Tt
Fees we 720 1,680
Other emoluments: E fth B -
Salaries and allowances e ROER 8,894 6,637
Performance related bonuses BRI R 2 TEAL 600 -
Equity-settled share option expense PARRAEASE 7 BEAGHE & (187) 268
Pension scheme contributions SRERFUR KR BIE R 4 45
9,348 6,950
10,068 8,630
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEME @)

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$540,000 (2016: EEMERERFRIN TELIENTESTRIE
HK$1,335,000) and HK$180,000 (2016: HK$345,000) paid to independent non- HMITEZHEE D 5AEM 540,000 7T (2016 5 -
executive directors and a non-executive director respectively during the year. 75 151,335,000 7T ) & 7 180,000 7T (2016 4F = 7

#£345,0007T) ©

Performance Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and related  share option scheme
Fees allowances bonuses expense contributions Total
we Fek HRBEB UREERE EEMR g
R 2 ZBEREER BRGTEMER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT  EETR BETR NI BMTR #ETx
2017
Executive directors: HITES .
Yau On Yee, Annie’ B 7 - 4,233 - 779 18 5,030
Ng Yi Kum, Estella* s - 4,024 600 - 18 4,642
Chan Lambert Lap Yip? CVE L - 637 - (966)" 5 (324)
- 8,894 600 (187) 4 9,348
Non-executive directors:  FEHITES :
Erwin Steve Huang' BHEK 180 - - - - 180
Chow Chee Wai, e
Christopher* 180 - - - - 180
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* ERCe 180 - - - - 180
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael*  BR# Y * 180 - - - - 180
720 - - - - 720

720 8,894 600 (187) 41 10,068
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9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEME (R
Performance Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and related  share option scheme
Fees allowances bonuses expense  contributions Total
e ek HRIB A UARRREAESE  REHTURA k]
2R 2 ZBERREE A FHEMER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFIT BT BEFT BEFIT BT
2016
Executive directors: HITES .
Yau On Yee, Annie’ ER& %7 = 3,330 - 588 18 3,936
Ng Yi Kum, Estella* = - 854 - - 5 859
Chan Lambert Lap Yip? PR3 %2 = 1,433 - 972 1 2,416
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence® RFR S - 1,020 - (1,292) 1 (267)
- 6,637 - 268 45 6,950
Non-executive directors:  FEHITES :
Erwin Steve Huang' BHEKX 345 - - - - 345
Wang Guosheng® FEE = = = = = =
Chow Chee Wai, b
Christopher* 345 - - - - 345
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* ERLC 345 - - - - 345
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin® S 1F4E® 300 - - - - 300
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael*  BR# Y+ 345 - - - - 345
1,680 - - - - 1,680
1,680 6,637 - 268 45 8,630
* Independent non-executive directors i By EHITES
# Amount represented the write-back of accrued equity-settled share option expense due # PRI BB T Bl B D SIS e RS IE B A o

to the related resignation.

L Mr. Erwin Steve Huang was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 March 2015.

2 Mr. Chan Lambert Lap Yip was appointed as an executive director on 24 July 2015 and
resigned as an executive director on 1June 2016.

g Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence resigned as an executive director on 1 August 2015.

4 Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella was appointed as an executive director on 15 December 2015.

B Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin resigned as an independent non-executive director on 1
January 2016.

@ Mr. Wang Guosheng resigned as a non-executive director on 1 December 2016.

/ Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is also the chief executive officer of the Group.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive

directors during the year (2016: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).

L R201553 A1HEEKEERZTERARARFFHR
TEE -

2 2015 7 A 24 BRI A BE T AR AR
TEERN206F6 A1BBIARRNITES -

E R20154F8 1B R TR ALBTARAMITES -

4 R2015F12 A1 BEhAEL T EEZT AR AR
TESF -

E 2016 41 A1 H = [EAE & £ BHEA A BB IEH
TES -

£ 2016612 418 F BB £ B EARR R ERIT

o
Z BB BEL L IREA KB RITHABE

FRIEEMIME RN TBILIERTESE (2016
FE) -

FRNEEVEFLEMNREXRBRETAHE
B HE (2016 4F « 48) o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEREFHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors (2016; FAREERER TR MEEBE2HR (20164 :
three), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the IH)EF  HiFAMe BRI EHR LafizEo - &
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2016: two) non-director, highest FEHEHBIAQ06F  2R) e MEES=EE
paid employees are as follows: A ERAT ¢
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$°000 /8% T 7t HK$'000 ¥ T T
Salaries and allowances e RoER 6,742 3,824
Performance related bonuses HRSR IR R 2 B4 1,451 500
Equity-settled share option expense ARG HEAEE BB EE A - -
Pension scheme contributions SRR R B 18 18
8,211 4,342
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell MEN TR TERz & MEESES 2 AR
within the following bands is as follows: I
2017 2016
2017 2016 £
Number of employees Number of employees
EEAH EE A
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 ¥ 2,000,001 7T 2 & 2,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 #5 2,500,001 7T &7 #5 3,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 75 3,000,001 7T 2% # 3,500,000 7T - -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 3,500,001 ST =78 # 4,000,000 7T 1 -
3 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the top five highest paid individuals FRAREEFETIMARELZ RS 5 EES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of £ (20164 : &%) " EABEBHEMAKEMARSE

office during the year (2016 Nil). B2 e - SERBEBAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 15 i 25 B 5 (s

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FEHER

EBFEHRDNIBBEAFERREB Z (AT ERH
B - 1% A %16.5% (2016 4F : 16.5%) 5T & -
EERBBAINEE 2 BFRAF AIZEFEL

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable other than Hong Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing

in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. BB R ERIE -
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 /B T 7t HK$'000 ¥ T T
Current — Hong Kong AE — BA
Charge for the year FAFIE 3,798 310
(Overprovision)/underprovision in BEEE GRERE),
prior years BETRE (1,372) 1,353
Current — Other than Hong Kong ANHR — HALASN
Charge for the year FAFIE 31,844 34,042
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREIR 386 308
Deferred (note 29) IRIE (M13E29) (5,978) (13,520)
28,678 22,493

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory
rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BARALEEMBARMEE BRINZXEH
FAEWBERRGHAIRMN 2 HEERWT

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 ¢
HK$’000 &% T 7T HK$'000 ¥ T T
Profit before tax R 5 BT & R 51,882 46,306
Tax at the statutory rates BEER X 16,188 17,398
Profits entitled to tax exemption HNefRIEZ BF) (20) (40)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 T 7,464 7,610
Income not subject to tax BRI Z WA (734) 87
Tax losses utilised from previous periods R A EAE 2 B A 1R (459) (2130)
Tax losses and temporary differences RERTGEEEREREE
not recognised 7,225 3,899
Temporary difference recognised in ERAFHRNERER
respect of previous period - (5,818)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BRUAE BARE 2 B IB VAR HA A B
of previous periods (986) 1,661
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate IRANEBE S53% BERH R
of 55.3% (2016: 48.6%) (2016 4F : 48.6%) st & 2 Fi1E 28,678 22,493
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DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 E#E T 7T HK$'000 &% F 7T
Interim dividend of HK$0.015 FHAR SR E RS 0.0157T
(2016: HK$0.015) per ordinary share paid (2016 4 : ##0.0157T) 3,155 5155
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.0375 R R EARG B A% B A%
(2016: HK$0.026) per ordinary share 7B5#0.03757C
(2016 F : A% 0.026 7T) 7,888 5,469
11,043 8,624
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s AEEBRE 2 RAREBHFARR ARG ERIT
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has not been ZRRBAFAS FIRE FRE#E - B RRHR
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. EHRERRAE -
The Board recommended that the final dividend for 2016/17 be satisfied wholly in BESESURBRERND H X2 2016/17
the form of an allotment of scrip shares. Shareholders will be given the option of RERE - REBER T2 AB RS Lk
receiving the final dividend wholly in cash in lieu of such allotment, or partly in cash % BN AR & R EVS AR B 77 ELR
and partly in the form of scrip shares. The arrangement is subject to: (1) the HARR B 2 IR IEHE o RTEIZERF - ()R BENEERITARE
approval of proposed final dividend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting; AFRE FRBEFZIABKE : RQBRATHE
and (2) The Stock Exchange’s granting the listing of and permission to deal in the B LEMFTEBET I RERO EMEE - AOE
scrip shares to be issued in respect of the final dividend. g
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 13. ZRQAFEEAELMERER

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$23,177,000 (2016:
HK$23,623,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
210,336,221 (2016: 210,336,221 in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts presented
for the years ended 28 February 2017 and 29 February 2016 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options (2016: share options and convertible bonds)
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts
presented.

SRERBANCEDNIEFARNRAREE AELA
F ¥ 23,177,000 7T (2016 & : 7% 23,623,000 7T)
RERNBEITE AR 2 INHE 5% $0210,336,221
% (2016 £ : 210,336,221 B%) 51 & o

ARAEBBETHRERE(06F - BRERA
BMRES) B REERE - WESHEZE2017
F2A2HK206F2A 298 IEFEZERER
BAELRE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14. Y% BERZRE

Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
F - £B
THREF HERESE R&E AE mEs
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BB T BETT BETT BET T
As at 28 February 2017 R2017%F2H28H
As at 29 February 2016 and R2016F2A298 &
1 March 2016: 2063818 :
Cost AR 95,188 18,801 464,457 8,055 586,501
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (41,510) (15,107) (385,222) (5,221) (447,060)
Net carrying amount FEFE 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
At 1 March 2016, net of accumulated R201653 818 -
depreciation MR Rt & 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
Additions NE - 1,188 61,565 464 63,217
Disposals ZE - (554) (883) (23) (1,460)
Depreciation provided during the year 4 AT &R & (1,814) (1,334) (55,738) (756) (59,642)
Exchange realignment ERE - (141) (221 (16) (378)
At 28 February 2017, net of R2017462H28H -
accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141,178
At 28 February 2017: M201742 A 288 :
Cost (2% 95,188 16,592 477,953 6,974 596,707
Accumulated depreciation 2EHiTE (43,324) (13,739) (393,995) 4,471) (455,529)
Net carrying amount BRERE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141,178
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% BERRZRE@E
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
&L EE
THRETF BB R s P& T8 k]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PRI BT T BT T BT
As at 29 February 2016 720162829 H
As at 1 March 2015: R20156F3 818 :
Cost A 95,188 18,303 486,126 6,254 605,871
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (39,696) (14,670) (401,595) (4,963) (460,924)
Net carrying amount REFE 55,492 3,633 84,531 1,291 144,947
At 1March 2015, net of accumulated 720153818 -
depreciation HBRRFATE 55,492 3,633 84,531 1,291 144,947
Additions B = 1,820 54,430 2,426 58,676
Disposals EE = M4) (D) Q) (306)
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (1,814) (1,469) (58,156) (866) (62,305)
Exchange realignment b 5 3 = (176) (1389) 6) (1,571)
At 29 February 2016, net of M2016F2 A 298 -
accumulated depreciation HBRRTE 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
At 29 February 2016: R2016F2 A 298 :
Cost B 95,188 18,801 464,457 8,055 586,501
Accumulated depreciation REiE (41,510) (15,107) (385,222) (5,221) (447,060)
Net carrying amount REFE 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
At 28 February 2016, the carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment R2016F2A28BAMEREFEZ2EM £E
and motor vehicles held under finance leases of the Group was HK$2,041,000. K& MR E R BREE A8 2,041,000 7T ©
As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s buildings were pledged RELB  KEBETEFSFEEMBUREGEARE
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 33(a)). BETHRITREEE (MFE33@)) °
At the end of the reporting period, the premises permits in respect of the property RELER AR BEBFIPE ARG AEE
interests held under long term leases in Mainland China have not been issued by the EHhEBENYERERBEEEENERESRE - NE
relevant PRC government authority. The net carrying amount of the properties was ENZEMERFTEBEBNERFEABSE 2T

HK$2 (2016: HK$2) at the end of the reporting period. (2016 %F : B¥&E27T) ©
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. EREE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
HK$’000 /&¥F T HK$'000 %+ 7T
Cost [p&N 99 99

AEE 2 EIZR 201742 A 28 B A% 99,000 7T
(2016 4F : #599,0007T) + AR A S B 7] LAR 4
AT E AN T M PR HARE A H A A - BT

The Group’s trademarks of HK$99,000 (2016: HK$99,000) at 28 February 2017 are
assessed as having indefinite useful life because the Group is able to renew the legal
right of the trademarks at insignificant cost indefinitely.

REERERAFTE -
16. OTHER ASSET 16. Hfh&E
2017 2016
2017 & 2016
HK$°000 /&% T 7t HK$'000 /&% T 7T
Cost of membership for a seat at SIRFEEFHI5
The Chinese Gold and Silver A
Exchange Society 500 500
The above other asset was stated at cost less any impairment losses. i B A B BE TR AN R B 1B A B B o
17. INVENTORIES 17. =®E
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016
HK$’000 &% F T HK$'000 # ¥ T 7T
Raw materials B 97,147 125,445
Work in progress Pk LN 50,896 66,556
Finished goods 2K M 1,330,636 1,415,508
1,478,679 1,607,509




18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FEWBR X
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
HK$’000 /&¥F T HK$'000 %+ 7T
Trade receivables FEUBR X 235,709 254,642

The Group’s retail sales are normally made on cash basis. Credit card receivables
from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged within one month. Apart
from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit period from 30 to 90
days to other customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing in general.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

FEENZEHE-RUARERH - HEEHE
M @ REMBEEZERER KRR Rk D
R—EA -BREERT,IH AREREMTFIR
HFHI0E0RZHRER - AEE N RETE
B AR U B 2 U AR FUABH R E B R - 8 B A R
B 5 IR B E (R B o SRS 5 B MY R R AR R
RERBOHZEF  MABERETHEER
o NS B30 B pt L WAR A SR R B (R R R
M IETTEMINREREE - BURR—RE R
RE o

RIEIR - BURERFIRIEE R B BT E LR
BRBRBRROTIT

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 &

HK$°000 B# T 7t HK$'000 %+ 7T

Within T month 1MEAAR 214,932 234,656
1to 2 months 1Z22@ARW 10,596 9,177
2 to 3 months 2E3EAN 3,964 2,784
Over 3 months B8 3@ A 6,217 8,025
Total trade receivables 48 FE U BR FX 235,709 254,642

The aged analysis of the trade receivables, net of provisions at the end of the
reporting period, is as follows:

RIS EK - RSB SIS A SRR
MR RE AT

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 &

HK$’000 8% T 7T HK$'000 7 # T T

Neither past due nor impaired R BRI ARVERE 188,938 197,073
Less than 6 months past due LR 6EA 44,707 55,268
Over 6 months past due w BB 6 @A 2,064 2,301
235,709 254,642
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of

diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables net of provisions are

18. FEWERF (&)

KRB ARBEZ BBREFRSIRRESRZE
P ZBEEP AR EENES -

BB HAHE (R RORUE 2 JE IR 3

&&mﬁﬁ$$@

BERERGRHEZBILTF - REBELR

ARBEERR  EAR

-
A B

ﬁMFtHEH/WE

BE AEEEXHNEEREHASEHRBNER

AR ZEYE -

AEERYRFTNGERBRBZIREENL TR

denominated in the following currencies: B BB
2017 2016
2017 F 2016
HK$’000 J&#& T 7t HK$'000 &% F T
HK$ Vot 3,418 6,542
RMB AR 231,831 239,375
us$ e 397 8,663
Others Hib 63 62
235,709 254,642
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FERR - BEREMEKRR

2017 2016
20174 2016 4
HK$’000 B # T 7 HK$000 &% F 7T
Prepayments FEf R 69,452 61,960
Deposits B 136,987 85,605
Other receivables HAth & R 9,314 11,331
215,753 158,896

Long-term prepayments and deposits DERIERBEEZ K
classified as non-current assets SELNE W58 (52,655) (43,379)
163,098 115,517

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

B EERERSTERE - LR AROMBE
EE BRI HAN IR 40 S 2 YRR AK



20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

142 | 14

o'

RERBLSEYREHRER

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 E#E T 7T HK$'000 &% F 7T
Cash and bank balances R RIRITIFR 323,657 202,549
Time deposits TEHER 166,801 253,320
490,458 455,869
Less: Time deposits with original maturity & : FREERIEAE 2R =1 A
greater than three months, but BLR—F 2 EBFER
less than one year when acquired (22,472) (19,524)
Less: Pledged time deposits for certain B ERETRHRITHRESRE
short-term banking facilities ZBEREHEFER (144,329) (162,367)
Current portion mENER D (166,801) (181,891)
Less: Pledged time deposits for certain B EAETHRITREEE
banking facilities with original ZEEHHHAZR—F
maturity greater than one year 2 EHTER— ERENED
— non-current portion - (71,429)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 323,657 202,549

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents and time deposits
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$248,048,000 (2016:
HK$346,577,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s rules and regulations on Foreign Exchange Administration,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 28 February 2017, the Group’s time deposits denominated in RMB amounting
to HK$141,629,000 (2016: HK$233,796,000) have been pledged to secure certain
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 33(c) and (d))

RBEHER  REBUAREAEM RS ME
S EEY KT BT RL /S 248,048,000 7T
(2016 4F : B 346,577,0007C) - ARKETREE M
HAHME Rl BIERE A2 INEE
BIEF  AEEEESRBEREETINEER 2
BITHARKEBAEME -

TR IRIT 2 R RE B RITFER 2T B =GR
BAE - RFREBENNRRS TR - EHEH
FRZEFFRARBIREVF - WIRIBEEHFRF
TRIAE - |RITEBRRERFEFOERREE
R BT BN S8 4040 85 2 RAT o

HIE207F2A28H  NEBUARKE BBMNEE
141,629,000 7T(2016 £F « 755 233,796,000 7T)
ZEETFEREEERUARSASES THRITEE
FE33 () K(d) e
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21. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period, based

21.

&1 BRK

RIMER - BARFIRIEET BB E 2R

on the invoice date, is as follows: DT :

2017 2016
2017 5 2016 &
HK$°000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 & # T T
Within T month 1MEAMA 62,946 77,969
1to 2 months 122 AR 39,620 73,069
2 to 3 months 223IEAANR 47,931 37,419
Over 3 months HiE31E A 165,895 83,176
316,392 271,633

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. BRI REE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated in the

following currencies:

REERMNERZEEEATIEE HEL

2017 2016
2017 2016 £

HK$’000 ;& T 5T HK$000 & ¥ F 7T

HK$ FEHE 47,920 7,064
RMB AR 71,536 123,684
Us$ ETT 195,340 139,101
Others Hib 1,596 1,784
316,392 271,633




22,

225,

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HiENSRRESTEAR

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F

HK$’000 E#E T 7T HK$'000 &% F 7T

Other payables HAbFER R 49,391 42,882
Customer deposits BRI & 96,660 81,877
Provision for liabilities BEEE 17,627 12372
Accruals FERTE A 102,234 113,996
265,912 251,127

Other payables and accruals classified DB ARIERE 2 Efb R

as non-current LIEFEA (6,595) (6,656)
259,317 244,471

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing.

HiENA BT BRI RRE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTES@MIA
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 & # T T
Liabilities afE
Gold forward contracts 22RBELD - 3,648
The gold forward contracts were stated at their fair values. EeRHENREATEETK-

As at 28 February 2017, there were no gold forward contracts signed by the Group
(2016: HK$25,186,000).

The purpose of the above contracts entered into by the Group was to manage the
Group’s risk arising from volatility of gold prices. Such contracts did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting.

>

R2017F2A288  AEBWEETESRAA
%9 (2016 4F : ¥ 25,186,000 7)) °

AEEFY ERAHNEEERAREZESER
B o ZFEAKALNN LN EFTRRIE 2 &I -
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24. GOLD LOANS 24, EHEE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$’000 J&#& T 7t HK$'000 &% F T
Secured gold loans =8 — AR 29,015 74,214
Unsecured gold loans =S HE — B\IKR 14,508 24,635
43,523 98,849

Contracted interest rate BHIFIE
Original maturity [REIEFE

The amounts represent borrowings from banks and the amounts payable are
pegged with gold prices.

As at 28 February 2017, the gold loans of HK$29,015,000 (2016: HK$74,214,000)
were secured by several pledged time deposits totalling HK$27,022,000 (2016:
HK$54,238,000) as disclosed in note 33(c) below.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of gold prices on
gold inventories. However, the criteria for hedge accounting were not fully met.
Gold loans were designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
as they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management and investment strategy, and
information about the gold loans is provided on that basis to the Group’s top
management.

3.0%-3.6%
Within 1year 1R

3.0%-5.2%
Within 1year 15£ 1A

ZHERRTEER - MENFIRERSERED -

MR2017F2A28 LilZEcHEER AL
29,015,000 7T (2016 4F : 7 #574,214,000 7T ) JA A<
%= BB E RS 8270220007 (2016 4 : 6 &
54,238,000 7T) 2 & T EEAFRIEAER - FHIBER
BATR 2 3% 33(c) th # 58 -

BAESHENBENARERSERKDEHES
FEZFE AN AE=ESBHERETE2NE
R F - BN ESHETREME
R EE RIRE R IE A FEESETIE LG
KRB MERERBRATEEIEABZHEE
B mMAEZSRSHEZEANTRA—E&R
HTFEREEZSEEEAS -



25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

25. FrESRITREMER

146 | 147

2017 2016
20174 2016
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$°000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
EHFIE (%) EH A BETT  AKNFIR®) 38R BETT
Current VL)
Bank loans and trade B FERNRIRERER
financing — secured ZHRITERRE FRE
— FigE 1.86%-3.34% 2017 162,181 1.73%-3.42% 2016-2018 572,701
Bank loans — unsecured BRI FENRER ZRIT
B3 — ik 2.54%-5.57% 2017 103,308  2.47%-3.02% 2016 29,388
Other loans — unsecured HER — EIEH 4.75% 2017 413 4.75% 2016-2017 8836
269,602 610,925
Non-current FRE
Bank loans — secured BITER - BER 2.66%-3.34% 2021 509,775 = = -
Other loans — secured Hi B — FIER 7.88% 2018 200,000 - - -
709,775 =

Certain of the bank loans above are classified as current liabilities due to the
inclusion of repayment on demand clauses in the bank facilities agreements,

HRRITRERRESRERER 2GR BE
TRERTERBESBARBEE - MR ERE

without which, the maturity terms of the loans are as follows: BZGEH  BERHEHERAT ¢
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 ;&% T 7T HK$'000 &% T 7T
Repayment within one year or on demand AR ER R HEESIRERE SR 269,602 604,954
Repayment in the second year AR 2FRE|HEE 301,063 5,826
Repayment in the third year ARZR2FRNEHHEE 408,712 145
979,377 610,925

All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

FRARITESIG BB AEELAL -
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25.

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 25. FFERITREMGER(E)
The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, including the bank loans and trade ATERITER(BRERERERZRITERRES
finance repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of BLE ) THIREE SR AN AR o TRATBE AN 12 B BR
the bank and other loans due for repayment after one year which contains a EEEBRERERERERARDPEARIDBEZ
repayment on demand clause and is classified as current liabilities is expected to be ERIRITEREIFENEE - (ELFTEREZE
settled within one year. This evaluation was made considering the financial position AT&IE : AEBR A B HREAZEB 2B Ak
of the Group at the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s N AREREETERIER  REENEH:
continuing compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default; and AEBBETERERZEN ©
the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.
As at 28 February 2017, the Group had available borrowing facilities amounting to MN2017F2A288  A"EBERBACREEREAS
HK$1,134,665,000 (2016:; HK$923,317,000), of which HK$1,022,900,000 (2016: 7B #1134,665,000 7T (2016 £ = 7 #5923 317,000
HK$709,774,000) had been utilised as the borrowings above and gold loans (note 7T) + H e #1022900,000 T2 BEER R &
24) as at the end of the reporting period. Certain borrowing facilities are secured by S HE (KtsE24) (2016 4F : # ¥ 709,774,000 7T )
certain assets of the Group as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements. RBEHRESR - ETREEERASEET
& E R IR I R B A5 SRR BT 5E 33 ©
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26. TABRRES
2017 20716
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 /8% T 7t HK$'000 & # T T
Convertible bonds AR ES - 348,541
Interest payable classified as current NEETRBAEISNDZ
liabilities FERTAILE - (12,500)
Non-current portion IEmENZL 1D - 336,041

On 20 April 2012, the Company issued to CDH King Limited (“CDH”) five-year term
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 under
which CDH had the right to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at an initial conversion price at HK$6.40 per share (the “Convertible
Bonds”) at any time during the conversion period, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. The Convertible Bonds were unsecured and subordinated to all
present and future non-equity linked indebtednesses of the Company. Any equity-
linked debt securities issued or to be issued were subordinated to the Convertible
Bonds unless the prior approval of CDH was obtained. The net proceeds were
intended to be used by the Company for general corporate development and
general working capital requirements.

MR2012F 4208 © A& A 7] & 17 FCDH King
Limited ([ CDH ) 78 € < 58 /& % % 250,000,000 7T
FAFHZ AR ES - CDH A 83 i HA (N B F
NEmMBREFEBRARNR AN EBER(RK
7)) WAERBSERAE - NIFBRERERE
¥ 6.407T ([ATRARES ) - ATRRES 2 KT
RURBRABERERERARRIEESEH A E
% (B BT ARET 2 B a B B E S
HERIRRES - BRIEFLEFCOHALE - K
RAREABRIBFERAR —BREEEREEE



26.

27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 26.

The Convertible Bonds bore interest at the rate of 5% per annum which were due
every year, and would mature on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the
issue date.

The Company should redeem the outstanding principal of the Convertible Bonds at
the redemption amount representing an internal rate of return of 12% per annum on
the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance date using
an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion option.
The residual amount was assigned as the equity component and was included in

shareholders’ equity.

On 29 November 2016 (the “Early Redemption Date”), the Company redeemed all
of the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of HK$250,000,000 together with
all interest accrued and outstanding up to the Early Redemption Date, and a
redemption premium, for a cash consideration of HK$374,604,000. The Group
allocated the consideration paid for the redemption to the liability and the equity
components of the Convertible Bonds as at the Early Redemption Date, which
resulted in a gain on early redemption of convertible bonds of HK$3,000,000
recognised in “Other income and (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, and a release of the related equity component of convertible bonds
of HK$3,093,000 to retained profits.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 27.

The Group leased certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles
under finance leases which expired within five years (note 14).

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the charge over the leased
assets.

148 | 149

AR AR5 ()

AR ESSFR R FENE D% RRETED
ERFRH -

ARRARAERES 2 81T B HRFSF U
BEREF12% 2 NEdE &K 2 & 5RO TR
BHFNAEARS

BREFOHNAFEENRARETHERRER
WM RSB RS 2 IS R KA E - Rtk
BB SEAERY  UEBERRRERD

R2016FENA29H ([RREERIHB]) - "ARIEME
Bl FrE Al R &% - A€ & 588 % 250,000,000
T BEREEREEDE 2HENE A LEDE
A BIREREARBE 3746040007 - AEE
ERERAIBRERESELZ BERESKDIR
REBRAELSE  REEKOEERBE
3,000,000 LB 5F Adr & 1Bz 2 E MU A K (&
B)/ K FER MEZIKOEEARAE
3,093,000 TEBEARE AT -

ENEMEES

AEBEBBNRSFARHZBEHEHEBEM
RKERRERTE (MFE14) -

AEEEMNRMAEENHBAZREEEMAR
i o
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27. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 27. BEAmERE @)

M201762 A28  BEEMBRERE 2 &EM
ENFREBEZBENAT :

At 28 February 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases
and their present values were as follows:

Present value of

Present value of

Minimum lease Minimum lease minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHEE REEE BRIEHES RIEEE
(B 3 FR2RE R HE
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 5 2016 4F 2017 2016 4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB T BT BETT BT T
Amounts payable; eI &5 ¢
Within one year 1ER - 1,664 - 1,632
In the second year B2 - 86 - 86
In the third to fifth years, FIFRESF
inclusive (BEEEME) - 2 - 2
Total minimum finance SEREHENTBE
lease payments - 1,752 - 1,720
Future finance charges KRBT E - (32)
Total net finance lease payables  JEfNRIE T & FEE 45 - 1,720
Portion classified as AEATEEEBRD
current liabilities - (1,632)
Non-current portion FERENERD - 88




28.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make lump
sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to certain
employees who have completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service,
and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any
assets to fund any remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid out
from the Group’s cash on hand when such payments are required.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the salary increase
rate and the expected return on MPF scheme balances.

The actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson, as at 28 February 2017, using the
projected unit credit method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

28.

150 | 151

BEENEK

RERBE

REBB(RBED) - WAKRBEETHERLTE
IFERERSERBEDSFHNETET  RA
NEEFENTARNZEE TXNERHARBES -
ENERREBTMREHFSMRBFRTE - I
kRt EAR KBRS MR E RSP BHAS
B4 R B D o R BB R R EE A
XNEMESRNETESHE - EFBERARE
ERRGBE RS KRB BEFREXN

ZET S E RN AR  REFREE(CRBEER
By TR I 2 R o

HEMR2017F2A288 © AAEEREMRNIE
HEECAEERBEMEEBURAE BN
BEETER ©

ERa MR RRERNSRMAT

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 &

HK$°000 ;8% T 7t HK$'000 7 T T

Present value of defined benefit obligations .5 1&F% % B E 1,240 17,863
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 28. EEEANHK @)

RERBES (8)
RBERAREERBU THEERR

Long service payments (continued)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
2017 2016
20174 2016
Discount rate BHIR K 1.8% 1.8%
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TEHRE € FHIR (%)

Year 2016 2016 FF - 4.0%
Year 2017 2017 & 4.0% 4.0%
Year 2018 and thereafter 2018 FF & bAT& 4.0% 4.0%

Expected annual return of the MPF FEH R TE S T2 B ETF W R
scheme assets 4.0% 4.0%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at the end of the REEHRAEARENEEFRE DTN
reporting period is shown below: T:
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in
defined benefit

(decrease) in
defined benefit

Increase in rate obligations Decrease in rate obligations
REBHEH 2 RERBFZH 2
BnzE #2h0,/ G A) A= 2,/ CRd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
% BT % BT
2017 2017
Discount rate Ah38 & 0.25% (383) 0.25% 402
Future salary increase RIRF AL 0.25% 498 0.25% (512)
Future expected rate of KRIRRFE S 5 LR R
return on MPF balances TE AR o o 2 0.25% (1,680) 0.25% 2,015
2016 2016 &
Discount rate 35 = 0.25% (702) 0.25% 740
Future salary increase R E LA 0.25% 636 0.25% (722)
Future expected rate of RIRBIE S 5 B EARAOIR
return on MPF balances T8 HA B i 3 0.25% (2,568) 0.25% 2,829



28.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that
extrapolates the impact on employee benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The

28.

152 | 153

BEBAEH (&)

REBRBES (8

P SRES T IRIBER RS MREERR
EEBEBEESRABBER B IEHE - B
EAMTBEENREZRRAE §JJ if E fth 2

sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all *BTE’ RAERTE - ARE TERENEELEA
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of B IEMER - MBURED T ARMLE &Bﬂﬁmﬁm
an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in %'J%%%E@%’I%\JRZ*E@ °
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in BRI IR BRRTPERNBERNT ¢
respect of the plan are as follows:
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 &#E T 7T HK$'000 &% F T
Current service cost REZ R A 225 907
Interest cost FEER 320 366
Net benefit expenses FEAAZ 545 1273
Recognised in administrative expenses B AITTHRER 545 1,273
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as REEHNERNEETSFHIT :
follows:
2017 2016
2017 5 2016 &
HK$’000 E#E T JT HK$000 &%+t
At beginning of year REA] 17,863 21,571
Remeasurements: Hif
— Actuarial changes arising from — REBRARMEERN
experience adjustments F%’”@J (5,655) 5,200
— Actuarial changes arising from — REERREEMELN
changes in financial assumptions mEg - (9,801
— Actuarial changes arising from —RRAOFERERESMEER
demographic assumptions EEEE m -
Current service cost REZE R A 225 907
Interest cost FEER 320 366
Benefit paid B E A (1,512) (380)
At end of year RER 11,240 17,863
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets

are as follows:

28.

EERAEH(
RAARE S (8)

&)

RERMBBREABEENRFEEZESIT

2017 2017
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement loss/(gain) in other comprehensive income
FABRRZHA FAGERENRZEEEE/ (WA)

Actuarial Actuarial

changes changes

Sub-total arising from  arising from

Net included changes in changes in Sub-total
At 1March Service interest in profit or Benefit demographic financial Experience inother 28 February
2016 cost expense loss paid assumptions assumptions  adjustments comprehensive 2017
fEADgE

Bxe fEEERE
72016 F A mEE mEEH FAZE  R20TE
3818 i FRE BREF BAER  HRES BEE KRR Wiz et 2A28H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BB BT T BT T BB BT T BT BT BT T

Defined benefit ~ R5EiE
obligations .8 17,863 225 320 545 (1,512) 0] - (5,655) (5,656) 11,240
2016 2016 &£
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement loss/(gain) in other comprehensive income
STABRIRZ KA STAREEERE CEERRE/ (BA)

Actuarial Actuarial

changes changes

Sub-total arising from ~ arising from

Net included changes in changes in Sub-total
At1March Service interest in profit or Benefit  demographic financial Experience inother 29 February
2015 cost expense loss paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments  comprehensive 2016
ARG

BEREH AEERE
20155 A MEE AL FAZE  R206F
3R18 R A ENE  BRRE BAET  HREE REES BRRE Weg Nt 2R29H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BB BT BETT BB BT BETT BB BT

Defined benefit  AEIEF

obligations .8 2571 907 366 1273 (380) = (9,801) 5200 (4,601) 17,863
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It IJ
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 28. EEFANZEK(E)
Long service payments (continued) RERBES (@)
Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years are as follows: TR AR R R ERMNER 2 HERAT -
2017 20716
2017 2016 £
HK$’000 ;8% T 7t HK$'000 & # T T
Within the next 12 months RARI121E A 506 16
Between 2 and 5 years R2ESF2H 816 1117
Between 5 and 10 years RSEI0FZMHE 862 1,518
Over 10 years B0 F 3,442 4,747
Total expected payments FES R B L 5,626 7,498
Defined contribution retirement plan REMTCERIARGTE

The Group participates in the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by the
defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for
all qualifying employees in the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to profit or loss during
the year ended 28 February 2017 amounted to HK$8,119,000 (2016: HK$9,556,000)
(note 7) representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the
appropriate rates set by the local government of its subsidiaries.

AEBERBEBCRHERESTEEN) MR
E - ABREEE(EFEKADERNES R ZAIT
BREEREENERTENES  REBEST
Bl mESHER—ERTEFEKRTE - BB
VHEZTEAETE - BERESE BEERERE
B AR RES A SR 5% st EER HK
AT A BB A B 30,000 T4 LR - Hatdl
BV R T ENES SR o

REBITRABETE  HARBFRALREERD
REZ2E—EARERFERNRFE - SABNEES
YRAEENEEYFRABYZEARTARE
b

REZE207F2A2881EFE - AEERMES
B BT 2 15 X428 58 5 75 #5 8,119,000 T (2016 4 -
759,556,000 7T) (BisE7) » WEEBZSH K -
I AR R Ty 7 SR B2 5 B A RAR B [ R T i R
HILL R ©
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29.

DEFERRED TAX

At (gD

29.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

EER R

FRRERRAEREEZEMNT

Withholding
Accelerated/ taxes on
(decelerated) Employee undistributed Other
tax benefit  Impairment of profits of temporary
depreciation obligations inventories Tax losses subsidiaries differences Total
HEAR
OB
B2/ (FE) &g #E BE BAIH HitnEa
BEHE BRIZE & B8 BMFER =R Fat]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
At1March 2015 R205%3A18 88 (3559) (4,906) (14,278) 14,501 (12,483) (20,637)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  ERRNEZKRIGR /Gt A)
the statement of profit or loss BRI (FizEn)
during the year (note 11) (2108) (147) (88) (7.868) - (3,309) (13,520)
Deferred tax credited to the FARZEWERTA
statement of comprehensive ZERHR
income during the year - 759 - - - - 759
Exchange differences ERZER 6 - 198 (239) (863) (50) (948)
At 29 February 2016 and R2016%F2 8298 &
1March 2016 20163 81H (2,014) (2,947) (4,796) (22,385) 13,638 (15,842) (34,346)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  ERRERHENR /Gt A)
the statement of profit or loss ZIEERIB (FizEn)
during the year (note 1) 155 160 1,216 (250) - (7,259) (5,978)
Deferred tax charged to the FARZERERIA
statement of comprehensive ZEREHR
income during the year - 933 - - - - 933
Exchange differences ERES 123 - 339 750 (766) 125 5N
At 28 February 2017 R2017E2 A 288 (1,736) (1,854) (3,241) (21,885) 12,872 (22,976) (38,820)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) IEFER I8 ()
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 E#E T 7T HK$'000 &% F 7T
Net deferred tax assets recognised TEER B IS AR R R
in the consolidated statement of EERTBE EFRE
financial position (55,214) (50,692)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised TR B B ISR R TR A
in the consolidated statement of FEERTEAEFE
financial position 16,394 16,346
(38,820) (34,346)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 28 February 2017, deferred tax has not been recognised for certain withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. At 28 February 2017, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$632,449,000 (2016: HK$581,683,000).

REPECERBSHE  RPEKZZINEGIRE
ERINRREES KRR EBBKI0%EMFRE
o IR EH2008F1ATRABRAER  WEAR
200712 AN BEZEF - a0 EEINEIZEE
FriE AR T ARG E - B A] gl A/
TEIFERRE - AAEERPREKLZHTBEA
AIME  WABEAES% - At "EEBETH
ZERFR B 2B R EMN200841 A1 EE
EZ BRI BREBATBIAEH -

MR20176F2 A28 8 - BT AEBRN A EK 2K
B AR Z AR IREF M AEHATEE IR ERA
EEFIE - EFRA - ZSMBRRRARIEHR
PRAEDIRZZRF - R2017562H281 » &
FERBARIRESHEN N AER ZECHEBER
BN ER 2 BEE £ /B 632,449,000
7T (2016 4F : %5 581,683,000 7T) °
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IEFEFIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items at THIEE 2 RERIBEERLERREILRTIA
applicable tax rates: e
2017 2016
2017 5 2016 &
HK$°000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 & # T T
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERZIBELEHIEEE
— Tax losses — HIEEE 17,497 10,272
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as in AR AR HET A A EART AN &R Lil1E
the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be BRI MEZERATARNSTBERRELT
available against which the above items can be utilised. HIBEE -
The above unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Macau as at 28 R2017F2 A28 8 + A _EAEE 108,641,000 7T
February 2017 of approximately HK$108,641,000 (2016: Hong Kong and Macau of (2016 %F : BB KBTI ¥ 62,8580007T) RE S
HK$62,858,000) are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable NORPIEE & 2 RERBIIEEE « vl [R B EE
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. HZFELETEBBARZRRERTRAF -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by AR RAHERRIREE 2 IR SIS KRB o
the Company to its shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 30. BAK
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 B# T 7t HK$000 & #F T
Authorised: JERE ¢
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,500,000,000 iz F IR E B % 0.25 7T
HK$0.25 each 2R 375,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
210,336,221 ordinary shares of 210,336,221 SR AEE ¥ 0.25 7T
HK$0.25 each 2R 52,584 52,584




31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the Company
on 26 November 2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to
any person belonging to any of the following classes of participants to subscribe for
shares of the Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

- any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

— any person or entity that provides research, development or technological

support or other services to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

31.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the grant
and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an
option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for issue under the
2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued capital of the
Company. The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will
not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the Company’s
board of directors may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which
the option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription
right attaching thereon.

On 1 March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the directors, employees and
service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the 2003 Share
Option Scheme in respect of their contributions to the strategic development of the
Group. The exercise price of the options is HK$4.13 per ordinary share of the
Company (the “Share”), which is the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$4.13 per
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
and (ii) the average closing price of HK$4.08 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.25 per Share on the date of
grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

As the fair value of the services received from service providers cannot be
estimated, the Group measured the value by reference to the fair value of share

options granted.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 25 November 2013.

31.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 3. BRRERTE E)

The exercise price of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting REREBRAREARITEOBRENITEENT -
period is as follows:

Weighted average

exercise price Number of options
InfEF 91T {EE BREZE
HK$ per share (000)
FREEH (F)
At 1March 2015 R2015F3 A1H 413 14,860
Lapsed during the year FAB KK 413 (5,660)
At 29 February 2016 and 1 March 2016 R201642 A29H K% 201643 A1H 413 9,200
Lapsed during the year FHRBE KR 413 (3,100)
At 28 February 2017 R2017F2H28H 4,13 6,100
During the year, 3,100,000 options were lapsed due to resignation of certain BRETEIRANFEANEE - #3100,000 7k
employees (2016: 5,660,000). D KK (2016 FF : 5,660,000) °
During the years ended 28 February 2017 and 29 February 2016, no share option M201752 A28 H K% 2016492 A 29 HFE R &
was granted. The Group reversed equity-settled share option expense of BB AT TERRENERESRE S
HK$1,450,000 for the year ended 28 February 2017 (2016: Nil) as a result of changes B KEBREZE2017F2 28 AE#EEERE

in estimation of the number of share options expected to vest. #1,450,000 T Z FERR B R (2016 4F : £&) o
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 3. EBRESTE (@)
The fair values and exercise periods of the share options outstanding at the end of RREBRERITENEREN A FEEBERITE
the reporting period are as follows: BN :
Exercise period Fair value Number of
per option options granted
1TEHA SMHBEOEN BEEHN
ANEEE B ERE
(000) (F)
1 September 2014-29 February 2020 201499 A1H-20206F2 A29H HK$1.62 &% $1.62 7T 915
1March 2015-29 February 2020 20153 H1H-2020%2 A 29H HK$1.62 &% $1.62 7T 915
1March 2016-29 February 2020 201653818 -202062 829H HK$1.62 &% $1.62 7T 1,830
1 March 2017-29 February 2020 201743 A1H-2020F2 A29H HK$1.61 7% $1.617T 2,440
6,100

The fair value of equity-settled share options was estimated as at the date of grant
using a Binomial Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) % B (%)

Expected volatility (%) T8 R 1 (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 B 1 2 (%)
Expected life of options (years) TEET RS ARAE S ER ()
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) I RRME (BB )

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 4 years
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 6,100,000
(2016: 9,200,000) share options outstanding under the 2003 Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 2.9% (2016: 4.4%) of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

BlREaAFEERI ZEA ] BREBRAG
B WEERERHBRE RGN - TR
S TR EAREUPT A 2 8%

3.41
51.21
0.85

7

413

PR BB R 2 BB AR P EERE -

RS MR IRE B E 4 F R L BURHER
RAABERBR AT RE IR BV TT AR - M IREDR IR B
BRRELKERRRBDZHFER  RURE
BRAER o

AN R AZ RS - AR AR IR 2003 G B Ak 4
ST 813 M M AR 1T E R B AR 5 6,100,00017 (2016
4 :9200,000) ' IEARRBIEEZ BB ETRG
#92.9% (2016 & : 4.4%) °
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S5t

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 88 to 89 of the financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

@

()

©

C))

The Group entered into banking facility arrangements with a bank (2016:
two) pursuant to which certain land and buildings in Hong Kong with an
aggregate carrying value as at 28 February 2017 of HK$51,864,000 (2016:
HK$53,678,000)) in Hong Kong were mortgaged by way of a first legal
charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to that bank (note 14).

The Group entered into a subscription agreement with two institutional
investors for senior secured notes issued by a subsidiary in Hong Kong,
pursuant to which certain inventories (i.e. up to an aggregate book value of
HK$200,000,000 of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods) of
such subsidiary in Hong Kong were pledged by way of a first floating charge,
as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent,
from time to time owing by the Group to the two institutional investors.

As at 28 February 2017, time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB and
totalling equivalent to HK$27,022,000 (2016: HK$54,238,000) have been
pledged to secure certain gold loan contracts outstanding at the end of the
reporting period (note 20).

As at 28 February 2017, time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB and
totalling equivalent to HK$117,307,000 (2016: HK$179,558,000) have been
pledged to secure standby letters of credit relating to a cross border treasury
arrangement (note 20).

32.
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34.

35.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years, with
options to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of the terms of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements have been subject to contingent rent by reference to
monthly turnover throughout the leasing periods. The minimum guaranteed rental
has been used to arrive at the commitments below.

As at 28 February 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

34, SEHEERH
AR A

AEBUNEEHERFHEES TWE - WERY
RERBRIERPANT —E2=F  YAIREMNE
EEOGRRREEYN LEFENZHSER

BREBEUARRTSHEE

ETHEZHE2ERHEPRANEAEEE K
BiE - UTZEREERAZERBEASHE -

R2017F2A288 @ BETAIHEENECEHEE
HIER  AREZ R RFEESMZ@ENAT -

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 &
HK$’000 /8% T 7t HK$'000 & # T T
Within one year 1R 181,228 166,351
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E2FEEFESF(BREEMSE) 177,703 191,735
358,931 358,086
COMMITMENTS 35. RIE
As at 28 February 2017, the Group had the capital commitments for leasehold MN2017F2A288 - NEBHRWE - BER&E
improvement as follows: HIEARFEWLT -
2017 2016
2017 5 2016 &
HK$’000 &% T 7T HK$'000 & # T T
Contracted but not provided for EEQ - BRERE - 675




36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties
during the year ended 28 February 2017:

36.
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BEALRS

(@ KBReERAFBBREREGENDAHZZS

7/

AREENREE207FE2A288 1IEFE

HEBBATETIATRS :

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 %
HK$°000 /&# T 7T HK$'000 &% F T
0) Purchase from related companies HEELARBEE 359,622 297,077
(i) Sales to group company through a 53R — ] B P P AR
related intermediate holding company NRHETEE 368,313 263,330
Balance due to these related companies amounted to HK$119,942,000 JERN A LBERRRIEABE
(2016: HK$52,765,000) 119,942,000 7t (2016 & :  # ¥
52,765,000 7T)
i) () Mr. Tommy Tse, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie (i) ()IFEELEERARRET —REMH
Yau”), the Executive Director of the Company, has been employed by BRARETARTHRAR — EmMt
a subsidiary of the Company as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer JE X B 20161 A1 B FAT AEE
— Supplies and re-designated from Deputy Chief Executive Officer BIITEABE, - BIEERSAEBA DR
— Supplies to Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group with effect WITEBBLRELZ LT 2B ¢ (i) H
from 1 November 2016; (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the BT AW ARRET — M B A
father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, has been AIEERBEIA - BBk E AW
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder. During the BEBREEZXBROZELZ LT ZR
year, remuneration of HK$1,907,000 (2016: HK$1,338,000) and H o RAFERD RIS FHERL
HK$1,599,000 (2016: HK$1,544,000) were paid to Mr. Tommy Tse and A 7B 851,907,000 7T (2016 £F = 78 #&
Mr. Tse Senior respectively. 1,338,000 7T ) K #t I B o £ B
1,599,0007T (20164 : 7##&1,544,000
TL) BB o
(iv)  Notional charge of equity-settled share option expense of (iv) SRRFHER LA R BT AER T

HK$779,000 (2016: HK$588,000) and HK$515,000 (2016: HK$389,000
were accrued for share options granted to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse
Senior respectively.

BREZEFIREEZUREEE
ZBERAEE RS R BB 779,000 7T
(20164 : 7 ¥ 588,0007T ) M & #&
515,000 7T (2016 F : /& ¥ 389,000
JT) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

®

(continued)

The related companies in respect of (i) and (ii) above are subsidiaries of
Prime Investments S.A., a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited
(“Partner Logistics”), whose board of directors is controlled by Mr. Tommy
Tse, the ultimate controlling party and substantial shareholder of the
Company. The above transactions in respect of items (i), (ii) and (iv) were
not continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions were
carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

The related party transactions in respect of item (iii)(i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Since the amount in respect of item (iii)(ii) is below de
minimis threshold for the purpose of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, item
i) is fully exempt from shareholders” approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: b)) AEERXTEZEEBEAEHS :

2017 2016

2017 F 2016 &

HK$’000 ;8% T 7t HK$'000 & # T T

Short term employee benefits HHAE B EA 12,103 10,798

Equity-settled share option expense DARRAEAS E 7 BEIRHE & 592 268

Post-employment benefits EREREF 59 59
Total compensation paid to key SR FEEEREAEN

management personnel <& 4858 12,754 11125

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the
financial statements.

EEMEE—TRBEERMERRMED -



37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

37. RERSEzeRMTIA
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NBERR - FEFI 2SR TAKREENT

MBEE

Loans and receivables

ER R EWRRR
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 &
HK$’000 &# T 7t HK$000 &%+t
Trade receivables e U BR X 235,709 254,642
Financial assets included in prepayments,  B&7EFEMK - 12E RHH
deposits and other receivables YRR B EE 146,301 96,936
Time deposits EHER 166,801 253,320
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESZEY 323,657 202,549
872,468 807,447
Financial liabilities MKaE
2017 2017
Financial
Liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BAFER RBEE PR A
AIEREZ ABRZ BF 7%
BasE =L i
HK$’000 BTt HK$000 BHE Tt HK$'000 BT T
Trade payables FERTBR X - 316,392 316,392
Financial liabilities included in BEEEMENKEE
other payables and accruals ERUBEE - 151,625 151,625
Gold loans =eHE 43,523 - 43,523
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITREMERK
other borrowings - 979,377 979,377
43,523 1,447,394 1,490,917
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the

37. RERSEZSBIAE)

RBREHR SRAIZeEMTAREENT

end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) (&)
Financial liabilities (continued) g SN E- )
2016 2016
Financial
Liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BATEE IR SH AR
FIEREZ ABR 2 BA 75
MEaE afg &
HK$'000 A& F 7T HK$'000 BTt  HK$000 BEEFIT
Trade payables FERFAR - 271,633 271,633
Financial liabilities included in BETEMENRRERT
other payables and accruals BERzWBEE - 156,878 156,878
Derivative financial instruments TESRMIA 3,648 - 3,648
Gold loans =8 98,849 - 98,849
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREAMER
other borrowings - 610,925 610,925
Convertible bonds AR & 5 - 348,541 348,541
Finance lease payables FERTRERE - 1,720 1,720
102,497 1,389,697 1,492,194
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38. SMIAZAFEERAFLEESR
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other BRETHROEGEMEAFEERE ZMBEIA
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as SN AEBEWMFTAZRAEEAERATE/N
follows: T
Carrying amounts Fair values
BRE{E AFEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 5 2016 FF 2017 5 2016 &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial liabilities BgasE
Derivative financial instruments 74 & @ T A - 3,648 - 3,648
Gold loans =eHE 43,523 98,849 43,523 98,849
Interest-bearing bank and A ERITREMER
other borrowings 979,377 610,925 979,377 610,925
Convertible bonds AR ES - 348,541 - 375,884
Finance lease payables FERRERE - 1,720 - 1,720
1,022,900 1,063,683 1,022,900 1,091,026
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38. SMIAZAFEERAFEESR(HE)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy: AFEESR:
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s TREIASENSHTEZ AT EEFESR

financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value: BERAFEETEZERE
As at 28 February 2017 A2017%2H28H

Fair value measurement using

KRRz A FEERNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SRR IS IE BAUEREE EREUHRIYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(& 311) (#7812) (#2731 3) e
HK$’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial liabilities B aE
Gold loans =eE 43,523 - - 43,523
As at 29 February 2016 201642 A 29 H
Fair value measurement using
KRRz AT EET=
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB TS RE BAREREME SAHUEBREE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&&501) (#&512) (#&513) aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT IT BT IT
Financial liabilities BEE
Derivative financial TEeBTIA
instruments = 3,648 = 3,648
Gold loans =eHE 98,849 - - 98,849

98,849 3,648 = 102,497
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38. ERMIAZAFEERAFEEZRGE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy: (continued) AFEESR (&)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 28 February 2017

BAFEEREZRE:
R201752A28H

Fair value measurement using

KA 2 A FEEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SEEMIZRE BEAUERHEE ER#UBRIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(& 311) (A 7812) (4 513) e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I BT I BT T
Financial liabilities e E
Interest-bearing bank and FTERIT R EMER
other borrowings - - 979,377 979,377
As at 29 February 2016 M2016E2 H29H
Fair value measurement using
NFEEFESR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERTISRE BAREREE SARBUBRHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(A& A1) (&% 512) (A& H13) s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT
Financial liabilities B =R
Interest-bearing bank and sHERITREMER
other borrowings - - 610,925 610,925
Convertible bonds AR E - - 375,884 375,884
Finance lease payables ERRERE = - 1,720 1,720
- - 988,529 988,529
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the Chief Financial Officer is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for their fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The finance department reports directly to the Chief Financial
Officer. At the end of each reporting period, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the Chief
Financial Officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of time deposits, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for non-
current portion of finance lease payables and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 28 February 2017 was assessed to be insignificant. The fair value
of the liability portion of the convertible bonds is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar
convertible bond with consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk. The
fair values of derivative financial instruments and gold loans are based on open
market prices of gold.

38.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 39.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, bank overdrafts, convertible bonds, finance lease payables, gold
loans, derivative financial instruments, time deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commaodity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that change in
interest rates had occurred at the year end date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date. A 1%
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 28 February 2017 and the retained profits as
of 28 February 2017 would decrease/increase by HK$6,734,000 (2016: decrease/
increase by HK$5,123,000). This is mainly attributed to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from sales and
purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US$. The Group does not
hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge
against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates this risk by
conducting the sales and purchases transactions in the same currency, whenever
possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ is reasonably stable under the Linked Exchange
Rate System with HK$ and accordingly, the Company does not have any significant
foreign exchange risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of operations. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on recognised financial assets is limited to their carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverability of receivables individually and collectively periodically and at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group considers that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company are
also regarded as immaterial as they are deposited with major banks and other
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over the financial assets. None of
the financial assets of the Company are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements. The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to
credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with lending covenants and its relationship
with its banks to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ~ 39. BiiERERE B ERBUER (8)
RBESERE (&)

RBERR - AEBRDATOERTRFAAE
ZHBRBEBZEHMERNT

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand
or less than
1year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
REREEDS
1EUTF 1228 2E5HF k]
2017 2017 & HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBHET T BT I BT TT FBHET TT
Trade payables FERFER 316,392 - - 316,392
Financial liabilities included in BEEEMENRE
other payables and accruals EErBRZMBAaE 151,625 - - 151,625
Gold loans HeHE 44,267 - - 44,267
Interest-bearing bank and FHEBRITREMER
other borrowings 310,302 335,729 440,293 1,086,324
822,586 335,729 440,293 1,598,608
On demand
or less than
1year 1to 2 years 2 to5years Total
BEREERL
TEAT 1826 2ES5EF R
2016 2016 FF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Trade payables FERERR 271633 - - 271,633
Financial liabilities included in B 5 TE H A B S R AT
other payables and accruals BERYWFEE 156,878 - - 156,878
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74 €@ T A 3,648 - - 3,648
Gold loans =8 100,699 - - 100,699
Convertible bonds AR ES 12,500 390,243 - 402,743
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITREMER
other borrowings 605,419 5,948 146 611,513
Finance lease payables FERTRERE 1,664 86 2 1,752
1,152,441 396,277 148 1,548,866
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 28 February 2017, the Group’s term loan with on demand clause in the amount
of HK$220,625,000 (2016: HK$604,954,000) was repayable within one year in
accordance with the terms of the loan. The loan agreement contained a repayment
on demand clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loan at any
time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount
was classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that these bank
loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider that these
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of
the Group at the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s
compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact that
the Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The gold
market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand conditions. A
significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the gold price risk, the Group uses gold forward
and gold loan contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in gold prices on gold
inventory. The gold price exposures are monitored by management.

For the gold forward and gold loan contracts, assuming that the amount
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year,
a 10% increase/decrease in market prices of gold at 28 February 2017 would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit before tax by HK$4,352,000 (2016:
HK$12,768,000). The sensitivity to the market prices of gold used is considered
reasonable, with all other variables held constant. This information has not taken
into account potential financial impact on other financial statement line items.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group has been imposed with several capital requirements from banks
and under convertible bonds on the Group’s equity to total assets ratio, net gearing
ratio and consolidated tangible net worth. As of 28 February 2017 and 29 February
2016, the Group has complied with these capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 28 February 2017 and 29 February 2016.

The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and time deposits divided by total equity of the Group.
Total borrowings include gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and finance lease payables. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
net gearing ratio not greater than 80%. The net gearing ratios as at the end of the
years were as follows:

39.
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2017 2016

2017 & 2016 &

HK$°000 ;8% T 7t HK$'000 & T 7T

Total equity R AA %R 974,282 1,030,678
Total borrowings less cash and BEERFESMREEEY

cash equivalents and time deposits KEHER 532,442 604,166

Debt to equity ratio FEELE 55% 59%
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(@

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

40.

IR ST BTE T

(@ AATNFBRRBERNBSHARAT

2017 2016
2017 5 2016 5
HK$’000 8% F 7t HK$ 000 &% F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE k& 271 595
Interests in subsidiaries NI Fa 833,695 1,232,012
833,966 1,232,607
CURRENT ASSETS MEVEE
Prepayments and deposits R RIS 1,591 448
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD 314 272
1,905 720
CURRENT LIABILITIES piEIN=NE
Other payables and accruals Hi AR ETER (2,658) (2,298)
Convertible bonds AR ESH - (12,500)
(2,658) (14,798)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nBaEFEE (753) (14,078)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABSARG 833,213 1,218,529
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Convertible bonds AR ESH - (336,041)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIAB & (48) (48)
(48) (336,089)
NET ASSETS BEEZEE 833,165 882,440
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves it (780,581) (829,856)
TOTAL EQUITY S EER (833,165) (882,440)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 40. BIBEMRIBE (A)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (b) ARRZFEEH/EWT :
Equity
Share component of Proposed
Share option  Contributed  convertible Retained final
premium reserve surplus bonds Profits dividend Total
TRRES K
RHEE BRERE EfRH BRI REBEF RERE Fok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1March 2015 R205E3A18 123,365 17169 14,770 8,600 714,329 7,182 886,015
Total comprehensive loss TEEREBREE
for the year - - - - (45,222) - (45,222)
Dividends paid during the year RERE RS = = = = (3155) (7,782) (10,937)
Proposed final 2015/16 ¥R 2015/16 RIS,
dividend (note 12) (FzE12) = = = - (5,469) 5,469 -
At 29 February 2016 and R2016F2 298 K
1March 2016 2016F3A18 123,365 17,169 14,770 8,600 660,483 5,469 829,856
Total comprehensive loss AFEZABRER
for the year - - - - (33,694) - (33,694)
Dividends paid during the year RERERKE. - - - - (3,155) (5,469) (8,624)
Proposed final 2016/17 BAR 2016/17 R IR 8.
dividend (note 12) (M3E12) - - - - (7,888) 7,888 -
Early Redemption of RERERE ARG
convertible bonds (note 26)  (FffzE26) - - - (8,600) 3,093 - (5,507)
Equity-settled share-option LA EEBRIEL 5
arrangement (note 7) (KsE7) - (1,450) - - - - (1,450)
At 28 February 2017 R20174$2R288 123,365 15,719 14,770 - 618,839 7,888 780,581
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(©) Nature and purpose of reserves

@) Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at
a price in excess of their par value per share.

(i)  Capital reserve include the difference between the aggregate nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries and their combined net
assets acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation and
restructuring.

Other reserves include statutory reserve and exchange fluctuation
reserve. Statutory reserve is appropriated from the profit after

taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and

regulations in the PRC, while exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. Exchange reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

(i)  The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the Group’s subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to a group reorganisation over the nominal amount of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued in exchange therefor, less the set-off of the
accumulated losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000
as at 29 February 2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

(iv)  Equity component of convertible bonds represents the unexercised
equity component of the Convertible Bonds issued by the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
Convertible Bonds in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(v)  Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will be transferred either to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or to
retained profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 May 2017.
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FIVE-YEAR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AP [ 5 R 2

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

AEERNBERBARBEREZREREE ARAKIFE
BB  MEBEAMIEERMBRRILESE
5 /BB ER) - FMHNMT o WA EL IR
EERHBREN—FPH o

RESULTS E45
Year ended 28/29 February
HZE2H28/29R1LFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2017 & 2016 4 20154 2014 £ 2013 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEFIT BT BT T BB T T

(Restated)

Exdl

TURNOVER e 3,410,923 3,538,862 3,871,029 4,057,271 3,562,819
PROFIT BEFORE TAX M A BT 2 F 51,882 46,306 62,930 101,349 94,952
Income tax expense FiiStiE R (28,678) (22,493) (23,331 (27,023) (26,964)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR NEEEF 23,204 23,813 39,599 74,326 67,988

Attributable to: FEIEBFIEH

Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE 2SN 23,177 23,623 39,758 74,529 68,137
Non-controlling interests IR AR R fE 2 27 190 (159) (203) (149)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEFEF 23,204 23,813 39,599 74,326 67,988

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BERFERKRRERS

Year ended 28/29 February
BZE2H28/29HILFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2017 5% 2016 & 2015 4F 2014 2013 4

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEFIT BT BT BT

Non-current assets IEREEE 249,646 305,540 226,302 219,672 188,257

Current assets MENEE 2,379,922 2,369,757 2,387,343 2,330,451 2,032,476

2,629,568 2,675,297 2,613,645 2,550,123 2,220,733
Current liabilities mEIaE (911,282) (1,267,625) (1,67,797) (1152,434) (935,258)
Non-current liabilities ERBBIE (744,004) (376,994) (351,540) (327,319) (296,782)

Net assets EEFEE 974,282 1,030,678 1,094,308 1,070,370 988,693
Issued capital BEBITRA (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves & (921,841) (978,219) (1,042,175) (1,018,086) (936,210)

Equity attributable to owners  ZANA TG A FE(EHERS

of the Company 1BRE (974,425) (1,030,803) (1,094,759) (1,070,670) (988,794)

Non-controlling interests IR AR SR A 143 125 45] 300 101
Total equity A% (974,282) (1,030,678) (1,094,308) (1,070,370) (988,693)




SUMMARY OF

PROPERTIES
UE P

Gross Percentage

floor area interest in Category of

Location (Square Feet) property tenure Usage
EEEE

ith Bh (FHER) YEREREE FHHNDE Az

1 Private Car Parking Space
Nos. 43-50 and 73, Basement, and
Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11 and 14, 1st Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, N/A 100% M C
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRBNEAWEREIOREETLHAE
HEE 43-50 5% K& 735K FLRK B RN &
—HE1-45% - 657 - 1 R 14 SREEAEAL

2 Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor;
Units A1-A2, B and C, st Floor;
Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and
Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong 91,455 100% M
BEBENBAMRBREIOREETLHAE
N A1-A7 BRI CBEAL - IR - IRSHHEIE ;
—HEAI-A2E BRCE : BEHEBMK
“BAKBURTFA

3 Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,
No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong 10,716 100% L
ERBAFEMNESRIRHIERE—EAZBE

4 Unit Alon Level 1and 2, Block 2,
Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC 1,654 100% L R
PRI RMEESER2E—E 1 AIB

5 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,
Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC 1,735 100% L R
PR RTHGEREERESTEFE-_T=1RE




L: Long term lease
M: Medium term lease
C: Carpark

I: Industrial unit
R: Residential
N/A:  Not applicable

The Group’s properties were stated at cost less depreciation in the statement of financial
position at the value of HK$51,864,000 as at 28 February 2017 (2016: HK$53,678,000) as
set out on page 138 of this annual report. The properties were revalued individually at the
end of the reporting period by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at an aggregate market value of HK$633,600,000 (2016:
HK$525,590,000). “Market value” is intended to mean “the estimated amount for which an
asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a
willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.
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IE REIRL
M: FRERRA
C SHEERL

I TEMEM
R: F=A
N/A: TEA

2017462 A28 8 « AEBH Y ERK AR RETITE
FIRER A B AR 2R R 05 58 & 755 51,864,000 JT. (2016
F : BWE53678,0007T) ° FEBENAFREIZS B - )
ERREHRNEMISEECHBE L BEE ERIGER
YAFEAANERARZ —ETEBABEBK
633,600,000 JT(2016 £F : 7 % 525,590,000 7T ) ° [ T 45
BEIREA—BEEXARF BEFREFEARE A
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